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Jos
Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan e PR

and the Honorable Council
State House

Federdf
Concord, New Hampshire 03301 » /’0 5 ’A ) J@/‘

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of Human Services,
Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services to enter into retroactive agreements with the
vendors listed below to provide homeless shelter operations activities to assist homeless
individuals through the Emergency Solutions Grant program in an amount not to exceed
$175,841 retroactive to January 1, 2014 upon Governor and Executive Council approval,
through December 31, 2014.

Vendor Vendor Location Total |
Number

Cross Roads House, Inc. 166570 — BOO1 Portsmouth $34,170
My Friend’s Place 156274 - BOO1 Dover $36,560
The Salvation Army (Carey House) 177627 — BOO1 Laconia $33,248
The Salvation Army (McKenna House) 177627 — B0O03 Concord $39,351
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. | 177195 - BO09 Berlin $32,512
Total $175,841

Funds are available in the following accounts with the ability to adjust encumbrances in
each of the State Fiscal years through the Budget Office if needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING -
SHELTER PROGRAM

Please see attachment for fiscal details

EXPLANATION

This request is retroactive because the grant term is based on a calendar year,
however the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development has not yet issued the
notice of grant awards for this contract. The New Hampshire Consolidated Plan stipulates that
contractual funding coincide with the current grant calendar year. The U.S. Department of
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Housing and Urban Development grant regulations stipulate that funds be obligated to vendors
within 60 days of the Department receiving formal notification of the award amounts.

This package includes 5 of 14 retroactive agreements and represents $175,841 of a
total of $469,735 anticipated to be available to assure compliance with U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development requirements. The Council has already approved seven of
the 14 contracts and two more will be brought forward at a later meeting. These agreements
allocate a portion of the Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing Act
funds, formerly known as the Stewart B. McKinney Emergency Shelter Grant Program funds,
provided to New Hampshire by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.
Four of the vendors will utilize Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to
Housing Act and matching funds pursuant to their agreements for homeless shelter operations
activities that include costs such as rent, utilities, insurance, and supplies. Additionally, Tri-
County Community Action Program, Inc. will utilize some funds for prevention/intervention
services such as rent with eviction notice, mortgage with foreclosure notice, utilities with
disconnect notice, and other activities to prevent homelessness. Such activities help negate
instances where households are threatened by immediate homelessness. It is anticipated that
these contractors will serve approximately 4,200 individuals statewide.

The Department has administered this program for 26 previous rounds of federal
funding. A Request for Proposal was issued at the annual New Hampshire Homeless Provider
and Homeless Education Liaison Conference on October 24, 2012 and posted on the
Department of Health and Human Services’ website. The Request for Proposal required
potential bidders submit proposals for funding for state fiscal years 2014 and 2015. Funding is
awarded based on anticipated federal funding. The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development historically announces funding levels in the late spring. The Department has not
yet been notified of the funding amounts available for state fiscal year 2015. However, the
Department executed contracts for anticipated funding so that when the federal funds do
become available, vendor access to the funds will allow continuation of services to homeless
individuals without interruption.

Criteria for selection included: proposal includes all elements and is assembled as
required; program design and need for project; use of outcome/performance measures and
outcomes achieved; cost effectiveness and leveraging of resources; local service delivery area
coordination/collaboration; soundness of program approach; accurate and timely utilization of
Homeless Management Information System; staff experience and credentials; compliance with
rules, statutes and life safety codes; increase in bed capacity; and increase in
prevention/intervention or essential services. Each applying organization was required to
submit a separate proposal for each program, which allowed for budgets and program models
to be evaluated independently. All proposals met or exceeded the minimum score of 50
required for funding. (Please see the attached Scoring and Financial detail for additional
information). ’

The Department assures contract compliance and provider performance through the
following:
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1) Annual compliance reviews are performed, including the collection of data relating to
compliance with administrative rules and contractual agreements.

2) Statistical reports are submitted on a semi-annual basis from all funded providers,
including various demographic information reports, as well as income and expense reports,
including match dollars.

3) All providers funded for shelter, transitional housing, or outreach services will be
required to maintain timely and accurate data entry on the New Hampshire Homeless
Management Information System, unless they are required by law to use an alternate data
collection. The New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System will be the
primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and housing programs funded
through these contracts.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, shelter and
homeless prevention resources for homeless people may not be available in local
communities, resulting in a statewide increase in demand for these services on the local
welfare authorities. People who are without housing and resources will resort to seeking local
shelter in places not fit for habitation, or will attempt to travel to shelters in other communities.
This will increase the likelihood that homeless people will be in danger of injury or death, and
will be cut off from basic supports for shelter, health, education and treatment. Numerous jobs
would also be lost since the sheiter and/or resource agencies would have to close their doors
or drastically reduce staff.

Area served: Statewide.
Source of funds: 100% Federal

In the event that Federal funds became no longer available, General funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Approved by &\& /

Nlcholas A. Toum
Commissioner

The Department ofyHea/th and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG)

The Bridge House, Inc. (Vendori# 165288 - B001)

State Fiscal Contract

Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $15,031
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $15,031
Sub-total $30,062

Cross Roads House, Inc (Vendor# 166570 - B001)

State Fiscal Contract

Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $17,085
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $17,085
Sub-total $34,170

First Congregational Church - Cold Weather Shelter (Vendor# 154198 - B001)

State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $6,916
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $6,916
Sub-total $13,832
The Friends Program, Inc. (Vendor# 154987 - B001)
State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $17,982
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $17,982
Sub-total $35,964

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism, Inc. d/b/a Keystone Hall (Vendor# 166574 - B001)

State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $9,052.50
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $9,052.50
Sub-total $18,105
Family Promise of Greater Nashua, Inc. (Vendor# 159372 - B001)
d/b/a Anne-Marie House
State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $4,623
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $4,623
Sub-total $9,246




Emergency Solutions Grant {(ESG)

Harbor Homes, Inc. (Vendor# 155358-B001)

State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $20,767
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $20,767
Sub-total $41,534
My Friend's Place (Vendor# 156274 - B001)
State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $18,280
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $18,280
Sub-total $36,560
Nashua Soup Kitchen & Shelter, Inc (Vendor# 174173 - R001)
State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $21,278.50
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $21,278.50
Sub-total $42,557
New Horizons for NH (Vendor# 175227 - R001)
State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $20,659.50
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $20,659.50
Sub-total $41,319
he Salvation Army (McKenna House) (Vendor# 177627 - B003)
State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $19,675.50
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $19,675.50
Sub-total $39,351
The Salvation Army (Carey House) (Vendor# 177627 - B001)
State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $16,624
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $16,624
Sub-total $33,248




Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG)

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (Vendor # 177511-B001)

State Fiscal Contract

Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount

102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $30,637.50

102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $30,637.50
Sub-total $61,275

Tri-County CAP, Inc. (Vendor # 177195-B009)

State Fiscal Contract

Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $16,256
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $16,256
Sub-total $32,512

Total $469,735 |




A Request for Proposal for state funding was issued at the annual NH Homeless
Provider and Homeless Education Liaison Conference on October 24, 2012. The
Request for Proposal was also posted on the Department of Health and Human
Services’ website.

Evaluation HMIS Total
Shelter Programs Score Utilization Score
New Horizons for New Hampshire 90.5 9.5 100
Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism (Keystone
Hall) 90 9.8 99.8
Bridge House 90.5 8.6 99.1
Nashua Soup Kitchen and Shelter, Inc 88.5 10 08.5
Harbor Homes Inc 86.5 9.8 96.3
Salvation Army - Laconia (Carey House) 87 9.1 96.1
Cross Roads House, Inc 84.5 10 94.5
Greater Nashua Interfaith Hospitality Network 85.5 8 93.5
My Friend's Place 82.5 9.5 92
Southwestern Community Services - Claremont [80.5 8.5 89
Friends Program 78.5 10 88.5
First Congregational Church 81.5 6.5 88
Salvation Army - Concord (McKenna House) 78 10 88
Southwestern Community Services - Keene 80.5 7 87.5
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc 75.5 7.5 83

Each applying organization was required to submit a separate proposal for each
program, which allowed for budgets and program models to be evaluated
independently. Fifteen (15) separate proposals that could be funded through
Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing Act
(HEARTH), from 14 organizations were evaluated and scored. Since HEARTH
funds constitute a small portion of each organization’s overall budget, proposals
that qualified for HEARTH funds were evaluated and scored with all other
proposals. All proposals met or exceeded the minimum score required for
funding.

Due to the quantity of overall proposais received, the reviewers were organized
into twelve (12) teams, which met and presented their final evaluations and
scores. The review committee teams included the following individuals:

o Natalie Allen, BA, MBA, Retired NH Department of Health and Human
Services Employee — Over 30 years of social services most recently as a
Community Relations Manager, served on the Local Service Delivery
Areas of Concord and Laconia, and as a member of the Balance of State
Continuum of Care

e Michael Bilson, BA, Program Planner |, Office of Consumer and Family
Affairs, Bureau of Behavioral Health, Division of Community Based Care
Services, NH Department of Health and Human Services



John Capuco, Psy. D, Administrator, Bureau of Developmental Services,
Division of Community Based Care Services, NH Department of Health
and Human Services

Christopher Cullinan, BA, MPA, Manager of Ryan White CARE Program,
Division of Public Health, NH Department of Health and Human Services

Sharon Drake, BS, Chief Executive Officer, Serenity Place (an NCADD
Affiliate)

Margaret Fogarty, MA, BA, Economic Justice Project Coordinator,
American Friends Service Committee

Ellen Fries, BA, Concord Coalition to End Homelessness
Sherry Gould, Director, Wijokadoak, Inc

Bill Guinther, BA, Program Policy Analyst at New Hampshire Housing
Finance Authority (NHHFA)

Janet Horne, Business Systems Analyst |, Bureau of Behavioral Health,
Division of Community Based Care Services, NH Department of Health
and Human Services

David Keller, Former Minister at Concord’s First Congregational Church

Janine A Lesser, BS, MS, Child Care Program Specialist IV, TANF Policy
Unit, Division of Family Assistance, NH Department of Health and Human
Services

Sandra Matheson, Director, State Office Victim/Witness Assistance, NH
Attorney General's Office

William McGonagle, Assistant Commissioner, NH Department of corrections

Niki Miller, MS, Senior Project Associate at Advocates for Human
Potential, formerly Administrator of Women Offenders for NH Department
of Corrections

Karen Orsini, MSN, RN, Director of Quality Improvement, Bureau of
Behavioral Health, Division of Community Based Care Services, NH
Department of Health and Human Services

Linda J Parker, BS, CPM, Program Specialist IV, Division of Community
Based Care Services, NH Department of Health and Human Services

Bernadette Pelczar, BA, MSW, Social Worker
Kimberly Perez, PhD, Family HIV Program Manager, Dartmouth-Hitchcock

Myriam Roeder, Adoption Manager, Division of Child, Youth and Families,
NH Department of Health and Human Services

Todd Ringelstein, Program Planning and Review Specialist, Division of
Developmental Services, NH Department of Health and Human Services



Michael Rogers, MHA, MT, MC, Assistant Administrator, Bureau of Drug
and Alcohol Services, Division of Community Based Care Services, NH
Department of Health and Human Services

Marianne Savarese, BS, RN, Project Director of Health Care for the
Homeless Program

Barbara Thorngren, M.Ed, Collaborative Education Consultant for
PeaceWorks New Hampshire, LLC

Kristina Toth, BA, Administrator, Family Connections Center, NH
Department of Corrections

Sally Varney, BA, Program Planning and Review Specialist, Division of
Community Based Care Services, NH Department of Health and Human
Services

Dave Villiotti, MS, Executive Director, Nashua Children’s Home

Donna Walker, BBA, MBA, Business Administrator IV, Bureau of
Behavioral Health, Division of Community Based Care Services, NH
Department of Health and Human Services

Kathleen Walton, Masters in Human Service Administration, Human
Service Director, Town of Salem

HEARTH funds were awarded to the Operations budgets of emergency
homeless shelter programs to meet federal requirements for the utilization of
these funds. In order to assure that HEARTH funds were available to all
programs providing emergency shelter, the following formula was utilized:

For any program with an Operations budget of $50,000 or less, the entire
Operations budget line was supported through HEARTH dollars; and

For any program with an Operations budget of $50,000 or more, 52% of
the Operations budget line was supported through HEARTH dollars.



Subject: Emergency Solutions Grant Program

FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1  State Agency Name

Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

1.3  Contractor Name

Cross Roads House, Inc.

1.4  Contractor Address

600 Lafayette Road
Portsmouth, NH 03801

1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number

Number

(603) 436-2218 010-042-7927-102-0731

1.7 Completion Date 1.8  Price Limitation

December 31, 2014 $34,170.00

1.9  Contracting Officer for State Agency

Eric D. Borrin

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

(603) 271-9558

1.11 Contractor Signature

1.12  Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
Mq("m“ 5")"004( EXQCUJ(?'V'Q
P NC/ —

1.13  Acknowledgement: State of [N &, County of 040 J’LAQ/KQ&/V\—\

8“/’ ggfo:z the undersigned officer, personally appeared t

he person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the

person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated in block

1.12. .
L13.1  Signafure SOSAN DuBIYCHEGNEY the Peace. .
Notary Public, State of New Hampshirg ~Cf Ly D ;
My Commission Expices July 28, 2018 S :
[Seal]

1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peaée

SUSAN D Duchegpeca N

Nmﬁ«g

1.14 State Agency Signature 1.15 Name and Tltle Z{OSptgte Agency Signatory
AT A “
%}5\@ OC r‘F( o @MWL&S‘IO&QA

1.16 Appr?ﬁal by e N H. D artmefit of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

By: %‘ /)/\LLJ' On: jr)'/, IV

1.18 Approval by the Gévernor and Executive Council

By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date”).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
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5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 [f this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity”), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

Contractor Initials:%g— —_
bue: 2/ 28 /%



8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default”):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination,
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report”) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination

Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each

Page 3 of 4 /%fg_

Contractor Initials:



certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation™).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers” Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.
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20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROYVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Contractor Initiamf‘&
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit A

SCOPE OF SERVICES
Emergency Solutions Grant

1. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT

1.1 Notwithstanding any provisions of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the
State are contingent upon receipt of federal funds under the Emergency Services
Grant. The State has applied for the Emergency Services Grant and will continue to
perform due diligence in the application process. However, the State makes no
representation that it will receive the funds. In no event shall the State be liable for
costs incurred or payment of any services performed by the Contractor prior to the
State’s receipt of federal funds applied for in the Emergency Services Grant.

2. PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO ALL SERVICES:

2.1 Except as otherwise modified in paragraphs of EXHIBIT A, the Contractor agrees to
comply with the program narrative, budget detail and narrative, and amendments
thereto, for Services, operations, prevention, acquisition, or rehabilitation as approved
by the Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services, Office of Human Services,
Department of Health and Human Services, hereafter referred to as the State.

2.2 The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right, following consultation with the Contractor, to
modify service priorities and expenditure requirements for the funds provided under
this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

2.3 The Contractor shall pursue any and all appropriate public sources of funds that are
applicable to the funding of the Services, operations, prevention, acquisition, or
rehabilitation. Appropriate records shall be maintained by the Contractor to document
actual funds received or denials of funding from such public sources of funds.

2.4 The Contractor shall provide semiannual and annual report information data by service
modality describing the number of unduplicated cases served, units of services
rendered, and staff required to provide the service, as may be required by the State.
Monthly reports may be required at the discretion of the State.

2.5 All programs under this contract that are emergency shelters, transitional programs or
permanent programs are required to be licensed to provide client level data into the
New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System (NH HMIS). Programs
under this contract must be familiar with and follow NH HMIS policy, including specific
information that is required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and time required
for data entry. Current NH HMIS policy can be accessed electronically through the
following website: http://www.nh-hmis.org.

2.6 Failure to submit the above reports or enter data into HMIS in a timely fashion could
result in the delay or withholding of reimbursements until such reports are received or
data entries are confirmed by the State.

3. SERVICES:

The Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that during the term of this Agreement, it will
provide services in accordance with the description(s) cited below:

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit A Contractor |mm
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit A

3.1 Emergency Solutions Grant Program, 24 CFR part 576

3.2 Contractor shall use the US Dept of Housing and Urban Development Emergency
Solutions Grant funds for:

O Prevention/Intervention Services, such as rent with eviction notice, mortgage with
foreclosure notice, utilities with disconnect notice, and other activities to prevent
homelessness.

O Essential Services, such as assistance in finding permanent housing,
employment counseling, substance abuse counseling, assistance in accessing
other community services, and staff salaries and benefits.

B Operations Activities, including shelter operational costs such as rent, utilities,
insurance, and supplies.

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit B

METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

Emergency Solutions Grant

The following financial conditions apply to the scope of services as detailed in Exhibit A —
Emergency Solutions Grant

This contract is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made
available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA), as follows:

NH General Fund: Not applicable

Federal Funds:

CFDA #: 14.231

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development
Program Title: Emergency Solutions Grant

Total Amount Emergency Solutions Grant Program;

2014: not to exceed $34,170.00

Funds allocation under this agreement for Emergency Solutions Grant Program;
Operating expenses: $34,170.00

Total program amount: $34,170.00

1. Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory
completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement, the State agrees to fund
the Contractor for operations, supportive services, leasing and administration utilizing funds
provided through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
Emergency Solutions Grant Program, in an amount not to exceed and for the time period
specified above.

2. REPORTS.

As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the following:

2.1. Progress Reports: Semiannual and annual financial and statistical progress reports
which identify the status of the Services performed, the outlook for completion of the
remaining services prior to the Completion Date and the changes, if any, which need to
be made to the services, shall be submitted by the 15th of the month following the end
of each six month period on forms supplied by the State.

2.2. Audited Financial Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in
accordance with the regulations that implement OMB Circular A-133. Three (3) copies
of the audited financial report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days of the completion
of said report to the State.

2.3. Where the Contractor is not subject to the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, within
ninety (90) days after the Completion or Termination Date, one copy of an audited
financial report shall be submitted to the State. Said audit shall be conducted utilizing
the guidelines set forth in “Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Program
Activities, and Functions” by the Comptrolier General of the United States.

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit B Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit B

3. PROJECT COSTS: PAYMENT SCHEDULE; REVIEW BY THE STATE.

3.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term “Project Costs” shall mean all
expenses directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the
Project Activities, as determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment in
accordance with Public Law 102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in
OMB Circular A-87 as revised from time to time and with the rules, regulations, and
guidelines established by the State. Nonprofit subcontractors shall meet the
requirements of OMB Circular A-122.

3.2. Payment of Project Costs: Subject to the general provisions of this Agreement and in
consideration of the satisfactory completion of the Services to be performed under this
Agreement, the State agrees to purchase from the Contractor, in the amount not to
exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8 of the General Provisions of this
Agreement. The State agrees to provide funds for homeless services in payments in
accordance with such other schedules as may be required by HUD under the provisions
of 24 CFR Part 576, Emergency Solutions Grants Program; HEARTH Act and all
applicable regulations.

3.3. The Contractor shall submit documentation of expenditures of Federal funds at the
conclusion of each bimonthly period or any other such schedule as may be required. In
no event shall the funds provided exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8 of
the General Provisions. Upon release of additional Federal funding to the State, the
Contractor may invoice for balance of contracted amount as specified in block 1.8
based on documentation of expenditures.

3.4. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs: At any time during the performance of the
Services, and upon receipt of the semiannual reports, termination Report or Audited
Financial Report, the State may review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and
all payments made to date. Upon such review, the State shall disallow any items of
expense which are not determined to be allowable or are determined to be in excess of
actual expenditures, and shall, by written notice specifying the disallowed expenditures,
inform the Contractor of any such disallowance. If the State disallows costs for which
payment has not been made, it shall refuse to pay such costs. Any amounts awarded
to the Contractor pursuant to this Agreement are subject to recapture pursuant to 24
CFR Subsection 576.55.

4. USE OF GRANT FUNDS.

Conformance to 24 CFR Part 84: Grant funds are to be used only in accordance with
procedures, requirements and principles specified in 24 CFR Part 84.

5. CONTRACTOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM.

Line Item Transfers: Funds may not be transferred between programs nor may funds be
transferred between line items as appears on the budget page without the prior written
authorization from the State. Any expenditures which exceed the approved budgets shall be
solely the financial responsibility of the Contractor. However, such excess expenditures
may be covered by the transfer of other funds where such transfer is permissible by this
Agreement. In any event, the Contractor shall be required to continue providing the
Services specified in this Agreement. The Contractor shall make no adjustments so as to
incur additional expenses in State funded programs in subsequent years without prior
written authorization from the State.

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit B Contractor Initials f&
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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Exhibit B

Emergency Solutions Grant

EXPENSE BUDGET for 2014:

P Federal
EXPENSE ITEM HEARTH Funds Match
Operations $34,170.00 $34,170.00

and supplies

Shelter operational costs such
as rent, utilities, insurance,

TOTALS

TOTAL Federal+Match

$34,170.00 $34,170.00
$68,340.00

CA/DHHS/100213
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
fundors for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party fundors, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;
Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials W—

CUDHHSA10713 Page 1 of 4 Date /25 /)%



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for ail funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAQO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his

attorney or guardian.
Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials%
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1.  The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmenta! license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

16. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
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subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated

function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting

responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if

the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual

conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance

with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

16.1.  Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

16.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor’s
performance is not adequate

16.3.  Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

16.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor’'s performance will be reviewed

16.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initial%
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is

replaced as follows:

4, CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2, Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workpiace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee'’s
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

1.3.  Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Workplace Requirements 2
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local heaith,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name: (y—0sSS RDQ/S' }ocae l\’\c,

2 |25 |14 Nipctha Jforg

Date ! Name:

Tite: EXxecwe Ve Oireefor
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name: (oSS RDO@IS Hov‘«d-o\' Ihe

2|25 )4 AW St

Date Name:

Title:  Ex<ecudve Direcfo
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

" »our " u

5. The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and

“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and

Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the

attached definitions.

»u

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F — Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Contractor Initials%: g
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (I)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: Cross Raaa/: FHouae ,Lac
Date / ?iz:e‘ ExeceFrre. Diveelfd L
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING
THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts
to comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

Contractor Name: (oSS 2040/3 T‘{OM-Q‘ Tnce .,

2 [257)14 Vg Loe_ s

Date Name:

Title: E)(e_e“;/\v{, oy 6(_99/\
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name: C rpos< 1205(6[5 ’\/" M,r"\c .

2.[25)14 Madtu Shoe

Date Name:
Tile:  Ex-ecudiv—e Dvectr™C
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILTY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to comply with
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and with the Standards for
Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164 and those
parts of the HITECH Act applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business Associate” shall
mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that receive, use or have access to
protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered Entity” shall mean the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

Definitions

1. “Breach’ shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach” in Title XXX, Subtitle D. Sec. 13400.

2. “"Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Tile 45, Code of Federal
Regulations.

3. *“Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code of Federal
Regulations.

4. ‘“Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

5. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR Section
164.501.

6. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations” in 45
CFR Section 164.501.

7. “HITECH Act’ means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Heaith Act,
TitleXIIl, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009.

8. “HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 104-191
and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR
Parts 160, 162 and 164.

9. “Individual’ shall have the same meaning as the term “individual’ in 45 CFR Section 164.501 and
shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.501(g).

10. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information at
45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States Department of Health
and Human Services.

11. *Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 164.501, limited to the information created or received by Business
Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

12. “Required by Law" shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR Section
164.501.

13. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or his/her
designee.

14. “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected Health
Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

15. “Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not secured by
a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable, unreasonable, or
indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by a standards developing
organization that is accredited by the American National Standards Institute.

16. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning established under
45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the HITECH Act.

Exhibit | — Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act Caontractor lnitim
Business Associate Agreement
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Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information

1. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health Information (PHI)
except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under Exhibit A of the Agreement.
Further, the Business Associate shall not, and shall ensure that its directors, officers, employees and
agents, do not use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:

2.1, For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
2.2.  As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
2.3. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered Entity.

3. Tothe extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a third party,
Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) reasonable assurances from
the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and used or further disclosed only as required
by law or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such
third party to notify Business Associate, in accordance with the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec.
13402 of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained knowledge of
such breach.

4. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to provide services
under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a request for disclosure on the
basis that it is required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an
opportunity to object to the disclosure and to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such
disclosure, the Business Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has
exhausted all remedies.

5. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to be bound by
additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall be bound by such additional
restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of such additional restrictions and shall abide by
any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate

1. Business Associate shall report to the designated Privacy Officer of Covered Entity, in writing, any
use or disclosure of PHI in violation of the Agreement, including any security incident involving
Covered Entity data, in accordance with the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13402.

2. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy and Security Rule as set forth in,
the HITECH Act, Subtitie D, Part 1, Sec. 13401 and Sec.13404,

3. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books and records
relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or received by the Business
Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for purposes of determining Covered Entity's
compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule.

4. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have access to PHI
under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same restrictions and conditions on the use
and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided
under Section (3)b and (3)k herein. The Covered Entity shall be considered a direct third party
beneficiary of the Contractor’s business associate agreements with Contractor's intended business
associates, who will be receiving PHI pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and
indemnification from such business associates who shall be governed by standard provision #13 of
this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of protected health information.

5. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity, Business Associate
shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all records, books, agreements,
policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes
of enabling Covered Entity to determine Business Associate’s compliance with the terms of the
Agreement.

Exhibit | -~ Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act Contractor Initials z Zz &
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6. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, Business Associate
shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the Covered Entity, or as directed by
Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

7. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an amendment of
PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set, the Business Associate
shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for amendment and incorporate any such
amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

8. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to such
disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an individual for an
accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

9. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a request for an
accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available to Covered Entity such
information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations to provide an accounting of
disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

10. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI directly from the
Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2) business days forward such request
to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the responsibility of responding to forwarded requests.
However, if forwarding the individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the
Business Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall
instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify Covered Entity of such
response as soon as practicable.

11. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the Business
Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate in connection with the Agreement, and shall not retain any copies
or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has
been otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the
protections of the Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business Associate maintains
such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the Business Associate destroy any or
all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

1. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its Notice of Privacy
Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the extent that such
change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

2. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of
permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or disclosed by
Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 164.506 or 45 CFR Section
164.508.

3. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or disclosure of
PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, to the extent that such
restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of PHI.

Termination for Cause

In addition to standard provision #10 of this Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the
Agreement upon Covered Entity’'s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business
Associate Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit |. The Covered Entity may either immediately terminate
the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the alleged breach within a
timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity determines that neither termination nor cure is
feasible, Covered Entity shall report the violation to the Secretary.

Exhibit | — Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act Contractor Irm E
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Miscellaneous

1. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein, shall have
the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, and the HITECH Act as amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit |, to a Section in
the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as amended.

2. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is necessary to
amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered Entity to comply with the
changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule, and applicable federal and
state law.

3. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights with respect
to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

4. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved to permit
Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule and the HITECH Act.

5. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any person(s) or
circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or conditions which can be
given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the terms and conditions of this Exhibit |
are declared severable.

6. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or destruction of
PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section 3 k, the defense and indemnification
provisions of section 3 d and standard contract provision #13, shall survive the termination of the
Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit 1.
Contractor Name: QPOSj 1?05!&(5 HM, ZLnc .
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entity
Principle place of performance
Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
0. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

2OCONOO AWM

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name: C r©OSS ‘?\06!0[5 HMI Tc.

2 /25//7 Sy S

Date Name: __
Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials —
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance 2
CU/DHHS/110713 Page 1 of 2 Date S V



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: J 7/ 7 7H q 77

2. Inyour business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

_L NO _____YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:

Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials% 'Q
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance
CU/DHHS/110713 Page 2 of 2 Date =2 =5 / 7



State of Neto Hampshire
| HBepartment of State

- CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC. is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation
formed March 24, 1982. I further certify that it is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREQOF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed’
- the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 5" day of June A.D. 2013

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

[, _David Van Patten , do hereby certlfy that:
{(Name of the elected Officer of the Agency carnit be 2ontia™ S.o0giory

1. I am a duly elected Officer of __Cross Roads House, Inc.
{Agency Name!

2. The following is a true copy of two resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on _February 25, 2014
(Date)

RESOLVED: That the ___Executive Director
(Titie of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the _25th  day of __February , 2014
{Date Contract Signed)

4. Martha Stone is the duly elected _Executive Director
{Name of Coniract Signatary) {Tile of Contract Signatory

of the Agency. // W W\ //ﬁ\'/

gnature of the Electeo Officer;

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of _Rockingham

+n
The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this Qf i day of Fﬁb . 20 V‘“

sy DOWs VO Foiin)

IName of Elected Officer of the Agaroy:

. JUDITHE. BLAKE, i wvaly -
MyOommisebnExpimsSeptsmbetQ 2014

Contmizsion Expires:

JUDITH E. BLARE. Loary -
¥y Commission Expires September 9 2014

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations July 1, 2005
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
3/3/2014

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

PO [‘I)?‘JtaRif-lk LLCh' A Suite 120 N
ew Hampsnire Avenue, uite PHONE ~ FAX . ] U
Portsmouth, NH 03801 (ALC. N (603) 778-8985 J (AIC, Na|: (603) 778-8987
ADDRESS: ‘
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE | nacy
www.DataRisk.com INSURER A :_Philadelphia tndemnity Insurance Co. 18058

INSURED
Crossroads House, Inc
600 Lafayette Rd.
Portsmouth NH 03801-5435

INSURER B : First Comp

INSURER C :

INSURER D :
INSURER E :

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 19391895

REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR

POLICY EFF POLICY EXP

LIMITS

ADDL|SUBR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE | lNSDJ_W\ID POLICY NUMBER | {(MM/DD/YYYY) | (MM/DD/YYYY) | ’
A | / | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY PHPK1112764 . 1/10/2014 11/10/2015 EACH OCCURRENCE s 1,000,000
['DAMAGE TO RENTED S
| camsmane OCCUR : | PREMISES (Ea ocourrence) | $ 1,000,000
" MED EXP (Any one person) $ 20,000
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | § 1,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 3,p00,000
POLICY D S D Loc PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | $ 1,000,000
OTHER: $
A | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY PHPK1112764 1110/2014 | 1/10/2015 | GOMEINED SINGLELIMIT 1 ¢ 1,000,000
Y | ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
A 7 ALL OWNED SCHEDULED
A AUTOS - AUTOS BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
f NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
v | HREDAUTOS | V| AUTOS {Per accident)
$
A | / | UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR PHUB44187 1/10/2014 | 1/10/2015 | EacH OCCURRENCE $ 2,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE s 2,000,000
I
DED | | RETENTIONS _ |3
B |WORKERS COMPENSATION WC0102840-04 T710/2014 [1710/2015 | , TEER T QTR |
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN ! | ¥ i9lAldle ,  LER L . o
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E L EACH ACCIDENT i 500.000
QOFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? |:| N/A : ) b - T -
(Mandatory in NH) : ‘ | EL. DISEASE - EAEMPLOYEE § 77500.000{
g es%ﬁs?ﬁgﬁ %;‘S eOrPERAT\ONS below ) . % | E L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | § 500,000
| | ;

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

State of New Hampshire i
Dept of Health & Human Services
Bureau of Homeless & Housing
129 Pleasant St

Concord NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WL BE DELIVERED N
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Michael S. Daigle m { () Wé

ACORD 25 (2014/01)

CERT NO.: 19391895 Penny Zust 3/3/2014 5:47:12 AM Page 1 of 1

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.

Mission Statement

At Cross Roads House:

We protect men, women and
children of the Greater Seacoast area
- experiencing homelessness from
exposure and hunger.

We provide secure, transitional
shelter for those seeking to break the
cycle of homelessness. '

We support individuals and .
families by providing them with the
opportunity to move with dignity and
purpose to stable and decent housing.



CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.
FINANCIAL: STATEMENT
Year Ended Juneg' 30, 2012

with Summarized Financial Information
for the Year Ended June 30, 2011
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Sanders & Karcher
Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Cross Roads House, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of Cross Roads
House, Inc. (a nonprofit organization) as of June 30, 2012 and the related statements.
of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Organization's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based upon our
audit. The June 30, 2011 financial statements were audited by us and in our report,
dated September 1, 2011, we expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial

statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of BAmerica and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, eviderce supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Cross Roads House, Inc, as of June 30,

2012, and the changes 'in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting prlnc1ples generally accepted in the United States of

America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards we have also isswed our report dated
February 1, 2013 on our consideration of Cross Roads House, Inc.’s internal control
over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, requlations, contracts, grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial

reporting and compliance and the results of that testifig and not to provide an
opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report.is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statements of Cross Roads House, Inc. taken as a whole. The accompanying schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular 2-133, Audit of States,
Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations and is not a required part of the
basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic fipancial statements and, in our
opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic

financial statements taken as a whole.
Snclern-
Sanders & Karc¢her

~February 1, 2013




CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC,
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
June 30,
2012 2011
ASSETS ’
CURRENT ASSETS ,
Cash $ 326,706 $ 529,398
Grants receivable 103,938 108,525
Unconditional promises to give - 23,750 95,203
Prepaid expenses 26,480 20,925
Total current assets . 480,874 754,051
PROPERTY & EQUIPMENT, net of accumulated . )
depreciation of $622,872 & $475,041, respectively 5,252,428 4,826,009
OTHER ASSETS . .
Closing costs, net of accumulated amortization
of $169 & $0, respectively 1,184 -
Unconditiocnal promises to give, long-term 333,761 494,387
Marketable securities, long~term reserve 270,497 265,133
Beneficial interest in assets held by others 115,295 123,295
Cash and securities, operating reserve 103,239 36,767
Total other assets ' 823,976 919,582
TOTAL ASSETS | | $ 6,557,278 § £,499,642
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 15,916 $ 31,849
Accrued payroll items _ 34,216 - 36,199
Total current liabilities : 50,132 ) ‘68,048
LONG-TERM DEBT 261,951 547,274
Total liabilities ' ' 312,083 615,322
= T "NET“KS‘SETS_ RO —.'_""'"'“’“'"—"‘“‘-—"—_""'"""" T T TS s TR s e - —— et e e e
Unrestricted
Designated 373,735 301,900
Undesignated 5,398, 654 4,869,535
Temporarily restricted 357,511 589,590
© Permanently restricted ’ 115,295 123,285
Total net assets 6,245,195 5,884,320
ATOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS o $ 6,557,278 $ 6,499,642
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
[Ny T




CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.
STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
Years ended June 30,

2012 2011

PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUES:

PUBLIC SUPPORT

Government grants : $ 830,772 $ 401,157

Donations : 381, 381 506, 591

Fund raising, net of direct expenses of .

$42,713 and $41,752, respectively 263,308 220,509
Total public support 1,475,461 1,128,257

REVENUES ,

Use of facilities . 2,950 -

Investment return 23,054 23,918

Total revenues 26,004 23,918
Total public support and revenues 1,501,465 1,152,175

EXPENSES

Program services 810,093 - 809,743

General and administrative 181,234 190,084

Fundraising . , 141,263 149,689

Total expenses . 1,132,590 1,249,516

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN OPERATING NET ASSETS 368,875 ( 97, 341)
BUILDING SUPPORT, released via use

Government grants , 230,899 401,157

Donations 1,080 2,672

Total building support _ 232,079 403,829
INCREASE -IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS 600,954 : 306,488
TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS -

Public support ' 851,727 421,193

. Restrictions satisfied by use (1,083,806) ( .839,096)
~ -~ - —DEGREASE—IN-TEMPORARILY -RESTRICTED NET_ASSETS ... __[___232,079) (__417,903) _..
PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED ASSETS

Investment revenue, net of fees - ( 569) 19,448

Distributions { 7,431) ( 5,374)
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED ’ )

NET ASSETS ( 8, 000) 14,074
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS ' 360, 875 ( 97,341)
NET ASSETS, Beginning of year 5,884,320 5,981,661
NET ASSETS, End of year ' $ 6,245,195 $ 5,884,320

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. -

~-3-




i

—

-p-

T
]
) }

‘Sjuswezels TRTOURUTI 9say3 o jxed Teabejut ue oxe sazou buffuedwoooe syg

916 '6v2'T § 06G°CET'L & €9¢'IPL § V€2 181 $ €60°018 $
GGh PET 666 ‘L¥T €6E°L Z9S°L P70‘EET
0ps’Gh 6T9°L2 Z8E'T T8€'T 968’92
SEV'T TARRA I AK R
1pe’T G961 - G9g'tT
89L'2Z1 Z28'6L - 228'6L
86H'T €971 - €971 ~
60L" 086’2 0852 - -
8602 G18‘2¢ 80b ‘9T L06'2T 006°’¢€
SOT'Y LEE'D 912 L12 y06 '€
090‘0€ 268'12 G60°'T " S60°T 20L'6T
GEE'LS 9PT 8% 80v'2 LOV’Z TEE’‘ED
Zrs Lt 0GE ‘02 821’1 LO6 . S1E’8T
b88/82 00892 0FE’T Tpe’'T 6TT’'02
T168°0T LSL’ZT 529 €59 08%'TT
269’971 TTH'L - Tiv'L
Tc8'1E LSL'SZ - LSL'SZ
€08'FT 666'92 66692 -
6LL'ES BT8’TL £95/91 80L‘L LyS ‘LY
269 8% LLE ¥ L6T'L 0826 006’82
€6L°ZPE 686°2¢€ 627 /81 000’z 966z1¢
GOE‘F02 786 €61 $  00S8'F9  § 008'%0T § 789’52
TeloL Te30% butstey UTUPY pue §901AIRS
~pung TeIausy wexboxg
1102 2102

‘08’ sung pepugy xesj

SESNEdXE TUYNOLLONNA A0 INIWILYLS
"ONI ‘ESNOH SAYO¥ SSOMD.

-o..._..-o..._._.- . —— e e e ————

STYLIOL

udTieZTRIOWR pue UoTIeRIO=Idaq

1583193UT

S838J JUSWIS3AUT

umemoambmn wexboxd pue IIe1S

wexboxd butsnoysa prdey

t JuswdoTaa®p X883UNTOA

putsTeIpung
UOT}RIFSTUTWPR PUB 3DTIIO

auoydsial
aoueInsurl

30URUS]UTIRW pUR sITedsy
I9M3S DUBR I91BM
A3ToTI309TH

1eaY

S9OTAISS 3D817T(Q

peod

§89J TRUOTSS3I01d
saTIausaq sahoTdug
saxel TToxAeg

sobem pue saTIRTRS
goTIRTERS JUsuabeuepy




CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended June 30,

2011

2012
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from support $ 1,648,291
Interest and dividends received 14,860
Cash received from use of facilities 2,950
Cash paid to emplayees and suppliers ( 980,443)
Interest paid { 27,619)
Net cash provided by operating activities 658,039
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net unrealized investment gains : 194
Cash paid for property and equipment ( 574,249}
Net cash used by investing activities - ' ( 574,055)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES )
Cash paid for closing costs ( 1,353)
Cash paid for:borrowings { 285,323)
Net cash used by financing activities { 286,676)
Net decrease in cash ; ( 202,692)

Cash at beginning of year 529,398

CASH AT END OF YEAR . $

326,706

RECONCILIATION OF CHANGE IN-NET -ASSETSFO- -
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

$ 1,668,543
5,700

(1,322,806)
(  45,540)
305, 897

18,218
( 184,262)
( 166,044)

(  682,253)
(~ 682,253)

(  542,400)
1,071,798

'$ _529,308

Increase (decrease) in net assets . 5 360,875 57 97,341) 1
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
" net cash from operating activities:
Net unrealized investment losses | 194) { 18,218)
‘Depreciation expense 147,830 134,455
Amortization expense 169 -
(Increase) decrease in;
Grants receivable 4,587 15,518
Unconditional promises to give 232,079 417,904
Prepaid expenses { 5, 555) 14,717
Beneficial interest in assets held by others- 8,000 { 14,074)
Cash and securities, operating reserve ( 66,472) { 8,539)
Marketable securities, long-term reserve ( 5,364) . 129,477
Increase (decrease) in: ’
Accounts payable ) ( 15, 933) { 280, 133)
Accrued payroll items ’ { 1,983) 12,131
Total adjustments 297,164 403,238
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 658, 039 S 305,897

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.




CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization
Cross Roads House, Inc. (Cross Roads House), was organized March 24, 1982, but was

essentially activated January 1, 1984. The purpose of the organization is to provide
safe and supportive emergency and transitional shelter to individuals and families

experiencing homelessness in southeastern New Hampshire.

Basis of Accounting
Income and expenses are reported on the accrual basis, which means that income is

recognized as it is earned and expenses are recognized as they are incurred whether
or not cash is received or paid out at that time.

Use of Estimates .
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with "geénerally ‘accepted

accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could

differ from those estimates.

Income Taxes
Cross Roads House has received a letter of determination dated July 28, 1986 from the

Internal Revenue Service advising it that it qualifies as a non-profit organization
under Section 501(c} (3) of the Internal Revenue Code and, therefore, it is not subject
to income tax. Cross Roads House is classified as other than a private foundation.

Financial Statement Presentation
Cross Roads House presents its financial statements in accordance with Accounting

Standards Codification No. 958~210, ™“Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit
Organizations”. Under ASC No. 958-210, Cross Roads House is required to report
information regarding its financial position and activities according to three
classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets,
and permanently restricted net assets. In addition, Cross Roads House is required to

——present—a statement—of—cash—flows~ —

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes -of these financial statements all non-custodial highly liguid

investments with an initial maturity of less than three months or investments with a
per share value constant at one dollar are considered to be cash equivalents. Cash
equivalents were $103,239 and $36,767 as of June 30, 2012 and 2011.

Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable consist primarily of amounts due from residents and local

communities for rent and food. An allowance for doubtful accounts is established
based on historical experience and management's evaluation of outstanding accounts
receivable at the end of each year. As of June 30, 2012 and 2011 management
considers accounts receivable to be fully collectible; accordingly, no allowance for

doubtful -accounts is required.




CROSS ROADS '‘HOUSE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Subsequent Events
Subsequent events have been evaluated through February 1, 2013 the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.

Promises to Give/Contributions

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to Cross Roads
House that is, in substance, unconditional. Contributions that are restricted by the
donor are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets if the restrictions expire
in the fiscal year in which the contributions are recognized. All .other donor-
restricted contributions are reported as increases .in temporarily or permanently
restricted net assets depending on the nature of the restrictions. When a restriction
expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net

assets.

An allowance for uncollectible unconditional promises is established based on
historical experience and management’s evaluation of outstanding unconditional
pledges at the end of each year. As of June 30, 2012 and 2011, management considers
all pledges to be fully collectible.

Unconditional promises to give consiéted,of the following as of June 30,

o 2012 2011

Capital campaign $ 374,750 - TS 618,019

Wentworth Gala event 74,909 69,400
TOTALS $ 449,659 § 687,419

The fair value of promises to give that are due in more than one year is estimated by
discounting the future cash flows using a current risk free rate of return based on
the ‘yield of g U.S. Treasury security with a maturity date similar to the expected

collection period.

As of June 30, 2012, amounts were due in:

Less than one year $ 23,750
One to five years 326,000
Less discount to net present value 7,850
Net promises to give, one to five years 318,150
More than five years 25,000
Less discount to net present value 3,340
Net promises to give, more than five years 21,660

TOTAL $ 363,560




CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Marketable Securities at Fair Value

Cross Roads House records its marketable securities with readily determinable fair
values and all investments in debt securities at their fair values in the statement
of financial position. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the change in net

assets, in the statement of activities.

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at
fair value. :

Common stocks, corporate bonds and U.S. government securities: Valued at the
closing price reported on the active market on which the individual

securities are traded.

" Mutnal funds: Valued at the net asset value of shares held by the plan at
year end.

The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be
indicative of net realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore,
while the Organization believes its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent
with other market participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to
determine fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a different

fair value measurement at the reporting date.

Marketable securities at fair wvalue as of June 30, 2012, consisted of the following:

Common stocks $ 103,239
Cash mutual fund 128,075
Government bonds mutual fund 142,422
TOTALS % 373,736

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are recorded at cost for those items which have been purchased,
and at estimated fair market value for those items which have been donated. The cost
of buildings and improvements is recovered using the straight-line method over
estimated useful lives of 10 to 33 years. The cost of furniture, fixtures and
equipment is recovered using the straight-line method over estimated useful lives of 2
to 7 years. Property and equipment as of June 30, 2012 consisted of the following:

Land and improvements $ 213,195
Buildings and improvements 5,595,949
Furniture and equipment 66,156
Total property and equipment 5,875,300
Less accumulated depreciation 622,872

Property and equipment, net $ 5,252,428




CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

NOTE A —~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ({continued}

Contributions

Cross Roads House records its contributions as unrestricted, temporarily restricted,
or permanently restricted support depending on the existence or nature of any donor
restrictions.

Donated Services
Contributions of services are recognized in the financial statements if the services
enhance or create nonfinancial assets or require specialized skills, are provided by

provided by donation. For the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, there were no
amounts for donated services. -

Donated Matérials .
Donated marketable securities and.property and equipment are valued at fair market
value. Marketable securities are immediately sold and are included in the statement of
activities as donations. Donated materials were received and valued as follows during

the years ended June 30,

, - | 2012 2011
Marketable securities $§ 4,420 $ 4,356

Functional Allocatlon of Expenses .
The costs of the various programs and other activities have been summarlzed on a

If ~functional basis.  “Accordingly; costs havebeen-alltocated-among—the-programs—and -
supporting services benefited.

Investment Valuation and Income Recognition

The Organization’s investments as of June 30, 2012 are stated at fair value. Shares of

the separate investment accounts are valued at quoted market prices, which represent

the net value of shares held by the Organization at year-end. Purchases and sales of

securities are recorded on a trade-date basis, Interest income is retorded on the
—_—accrual-basis._Dividends_are_recorded on_the_ex-dividend date. As of June 30, 2012,

individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to be purchased if not .

investments have a market value of - $373 736, cost basis of $373,542 and unrealized
gains of $19%4. _

NOTE B — BENEFICIAL INTEREST IN ASSETS HELD BY OTHERS

Cross Roads House is a beneficiary of an agency endowment fund at The New Hampshire
Charitable Foundation. Pursuant to the terms of the resolution establishing this fund,
property contributed to The New Hampshire Charitable Foundation is held as a separate

policy, the Foundation makes distributions from the fund to Cross Roads House. The
distributions are 4.03% of the market value of the fund per year.

fund- designated for the benefit of Cross Roads House. In accordance with its spending




CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC. _
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

NOTE B - BENEFICIAL INTEREST IN ASSETS HELD BY OTHERS {continued)

Activity in this endowment fund consisted of the following for the years.ended June
30,

} 2012 2011
Beginning, fair value, 7/1 $ 123,295 $ 109,221
Total return 272 -20,304
Foundation fee : ( 841) ( 856)
Distribution/grants {  7,431) { - 5,374)
Ending, fair value, 6/30 A $ 115,295 $ 123,295

Distributions/grants represent amounts distributed to Cross Roads House and are shown
as unrestricted dividends. - :

NOTE C.— ACCRUED PAYROLL ITEMS
Accrued payroll items consisted of the following as of the years ended June 30,

2012 o 2011

Payroll and payroll taxes 5 12,871 $ 10,968
Earned time ‘ 21,345 : 25,231
Totals $ 34,216 : $ 36,199

NOTE D — UNRESTRICTED BOARD DESIGNATED NET ASSETS

The Board of Directors of Cross Roads House has approved the following designations of
net assets as of June 30,

2012 2011

.‘AmLong-term reserve §"‘276;zg7”f—-—~——§§=§§gffifz__-.
Operating reserve 103,239 ° | 36,767
Totals $ 373,736 - $ 301,900

Board designated long-term reserve represents amounts held to enhance the
capitalization of Cross Roads House. Unrestricted board designated net assets may not
be liquidated or expended without the approval of the Board of Directors. Unrestricted
board designated net assets consisted of marketable securities and cash of $373,736

and $301,900 as of June 30, 2012 and 2011.




CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

NOTE E ~ TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net assets of $357,511 and $589,590 are available for the

T

capital campaign for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

NOTE F - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

As of June 30, 2012 and 2011, Cross Roads House has a cash balance held by a bank
that was in excess of the amount insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation. The uninsured amount was $85,105 and $64,581, respectively.
Cross Roads House has a cash balance held by an investment brokerage firm that is
insured by the Securities Investor Protection Corporation. There were no
uninsured amounts -as of June 30, 2012 and 2011.

Cross Roads House derives approximately thirty per cent of its operating revenue
from government agencies.

NOTE G - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Cross Roads House recéiﬁes money under various state and federal grants. Under
the terms of these grants, Cross Roads House is required to use the money within
" the gramnt period-for purposes specified in-the-grant proposal.  If- expenditures
of the grant were found not to have been made in compliance with the proposal,
Cross Roads House may be required to repay the grantor's funds.

NOTE H - LONG-TERM DEBT

Cross Roads House has entered into a bridge phase loan with Peoples United Bank.-

Payments._are_currently interest only at 5.3% per annum until July 18, 2013.

Additional payments are required to the extent that the capital campaign
contributions received during the prior month are applied to principal. At the
end of the bridge phase loan term, the principal is required to be less than
$500,000. The loan interest rate then resets to a rate equal to the then current
five year Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston Classic Advance Rate plus two
percentage ‘points. As of June 30, 2012 and 2011, the outstanding balance is

$231,951 and $547,274, respectively.

Cross Roads House has obtained a loan from the New Hampshire Community Loan
Fund, secured by a second mortgage on the property. Payments are interest only
at 2.0% per annum until October 15, 2013. At the end of the interest only term,
monthly payments in the amount of $443, including interest at Z2.0% are to
commence, with a maturity date of October 15, 2021. As of June 30, 2012 the

outstanding balance is $30,000.




SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION




CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.
SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year ended June 30, 2012

Federal Grantor/ Federal BAgency or Program Federal
Pass-Through Grantox/ CFDA Pass-Through or Award Disburse-
Program Title Number Number (s) Amount ments

U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development '

Passed through State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health
and Human Services:

Emergency Shelter Grant 14.235 010-092- $ 34,170 $ 34,170
7176-102-
0731
Homeless Prevention and
Rapid Re-Bousing Program 14.257 010-095- 317,850 120,167
{American Recovery and 0832-102~
Reinvestment Act {ARRA}) 500731

Passed through New Rampshire
Community Loan Fund:
State Energy Program - 81.041 - 120,000 120,000
{American Recovery and -
Reinvestment Act (ARRA))

Passed through United Way of
the Greater Seacoast: _
Emergency Food and Shelter 97.1114 593600-009 . 12,500 12,500

Passed through Cities of Dover

—and Portsmouth, NHand Stateof _—
New Hampshire:
Community Development Block

Grants 14.218 ©o- 396,000 381,179
TOTALS $ 880,520 $ 668,016

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant
activity of Cross Roads House, Inc. and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting.
The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB
Circular A-133. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from
amounts presented or used in preparation of the financial statements.

=19
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED
ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT.
AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors
Cross Roads House, Inc.

We have audited the financial statements of Cross RoadslHouse, Inc. as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2012 and have issued our report there on dated
February 1, 2013. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of ZAmerica and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Audltlng Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

ComEliapcg

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Cross Roads House,
Inc. financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
coritracts and grants, noncompliance with which could ‘have ‘a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective
of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such-an opinion. The results
of our tests disclosed no instances of non-compliance that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting . :
In planning and performing our audit, we considered Cross Roads House, Inc.
internal control over financial reporting in order to determine our auditing
procedures for the purpose of expre551ng our opinion on the financial
statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial
reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting
would not necessarily disclose’ all matters in the internal control over
financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is
a condition in which the design or operations of one or more of the internal
control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that
misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial

eteet: toed—n-+thin—a +1mn1‘r Deriod

~{{~—————-=statements—being—audited-may—occur—and-not—be—detected-within a—timelyperiod
- by employees in_the normal course of performing their assigned functlons We

noted no matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and
its operations that we consider to be material weaknesses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the board of
directors, management, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and
is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these

specified parties.

Socernd kpacher

Sanders & Karcher
February 1, 2013




REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Board of Directors
Cross Roads House, Inc.

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Cross Roads House, Inc. with the types of
compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget
(OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its

major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2012. Cross Roads House’s -

major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.
Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants
applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of
Cross Roads House’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
Cross Roads House’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliancé in actordancé with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards.applicable
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards-and
OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of campliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on
a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence about Cross Roads House'’s-.compliance with those requirements

'and performing such othér procedures as we Congidéted mecessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Cross Roads
House’s compliance with those requirements. -

In our opinion, Cross Roads House, Inc. complied, in all material respects,
with the requirements referred to above that are applicable to each of its
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2012.

- Internal Control Over Compliance - S .
The management of Cross Roads House, Inc. is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with requirements of
laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In
planning and performing our audit, we considered Cross Roads House’s internal

) control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular

A-133.




Board of Directors
Cross Roads House, Inc.
Page 2

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not
necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that might be
material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or
operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce fo
a relatively 1low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants that would be material
in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be
detected within a +timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the
internal control over compliance and its operations that we consider to be

material weaknesses.

This report is intended solely for the information.and use of the board of
directors, management, federal awarding ageéricies and pass-through entities and
is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these

specified parties.

Sanders & Karcher
February 1, 2013




CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year ended June 30, 2012

1 - Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

Type-of auditor’s report issued: Ungualified .

Internal control over financial reporting:

e Material weakness{es) identified: yes X no

¢ Reportable condition(s) identified that are

not considered to be material weaknesses? yes X none
reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes _ X mo

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

» Material weakness(es) idenﬁified: : yes X no

* Reportable condition(s) identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses? : yes X none
reported

Type. of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs:
Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with section 510(a) of Circular A-1337 Yes X no




CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
Year ended June 30, 2012

Identification of major programs:

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

CFDA Nummber (s)
Community Development Block Grant

14.218
14.257 . Homeless Prevention and Rapid Re-housing Program (ARRR)
81.041 ' State Energy Program (ARRA)

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs:
$ 300,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes X no

Section II — Financial Statement Findings

NONE.

Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

NONE
AN INLTE
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Martha E. Stone

EXPERIENCE

7/13 — present Executive Director, Cross Roads House, Portsmouth, NH

1/04 - 7/13

7/94-1/04

7/94-1/04

3/92-6/94

10/89-3/92

Chief executive of 96 bed not-for-profit homeless shelter. Oversee and manage annual budget
and shelter operations. Maintain relationships with state and municipal authorities, and ensure
regulatory compliance. Manage federal, state, municipal and private grant solicitations,
contract compliance, and reporting. Direct fundraising activities and supervise development
staff. Provide executive-level advocacy with medical, social service, and government
agencies.

Development Director, Cross Roads House, Portsmouth, NH

Raise $600,000+ annually to support shelter operations. Responsible for planning and
implementing all fundraising activities including individual and corporate giving, direct mail
appeals, special events, corporate & foundation grants, and planned giving. Oversee volunteer
activities, donor database management, and gift processing. Plan and execute donor stewardship
activities and events. Design and produce marketing materials. Represent organization at
community events and manage public relations activities. Work closely with Board of Directors
to set and achieve fundraising goals. From 2007- 2009 managed a $5 million capital campaign to
fund the design and construction of a new shelter facility.

Co-Owner, Stone Signs & Designs, Portsmouth, NH

Manage all financial records including accounts payable and receivable; involved in strategic
planning and goal setting; created and maintained customer database.

Co-Owner and Property Manager, Stone Properties, Greenland, NH

Own and operate multiple residential and commercial properties in the Seacoast; maintain
financial records including accounts payable and receivable, schedule and coordinate all aspects
of maintenance for buildings, interview and process all tenant applications; handle tenant needs.

Marketing Manager, Healthsource, Concord, NH

Supervised staff of eleven; oversaw the servicing and retention of over 400 accounts by closely
monitoring all account renewal activities; created marketing strategies to increase annual
membership; designed and developed service program including manuals for client use; trained
new Account Managers in all aspects of the position including: negotiating, presentation skills,
and conflict resolution; regularly conducted presentations for clients explaining health benefits
and policy changes.

Marketing Representative, Healthsource, Concord, NH
Accountable for renewing and retaining 75 accounts; executed enrollment activities by:

gathering underwriting data, presenting benefit plans to both employers and employees in group
settings, and negotiating annual contracts; sold health insurance products to new employers.

i s



3/89-10/89

5/87-3/89

EDUCATION

COMPUTER
SKILLS

VOLUNTEER

ACTIVITES

2/04- present
3/08-present
9/ 00-6/03
1998-99
1998-99

Marketing Representative, Beacon Health, Greenland, NH

Serviced existing accounts by coordinating enrollment activities including: developing annual
rates, conducting group presentations, and designing marketing materials; sold HMO product to
employer groups; actively participated in management team meetings; supervised administrative
assistant.

Marketing Assistant, Hardenburgh-Marks Inc., Boston, MA
Imported and marketed high end gift merchandise; supervised public relations activities;

designed and produced literature for new products; prepared for and traveled to trade shows;
sold directly to buyers; provided customer service to retail clients.

Bachelor of Arts, Communications: May 1987
Boston College, Chestnut Hill, MA  Honors: Magna Cum Laude

Temple University, London, England
Spring Semester Abroad, Communications and Theater Program 1986

Word, Excel, PowerPoint, Qutlook, Constant Contact, Raiser’s Edge fundraising software

School Board Member, Greenland Central School, Greenland, NH

Committee Member, Seacoast Half Marathon, Portsmouth, NH

President & VP, Greenland Central School Parent Organization, Greenland, NH
Co-Leader, Mothers & More, Portsmouth, NH

Fundraising & Hospitality Committees, Seacoast Parenting Conference, Portsmouth, NH

2.6€



Objective

Summary of
qualifications

Relevant work
experience

Daniel P. Mitchell

A rewarding and challenging opportunity to collaborate with others in positive ways.

Extensive experience and qualifications with all aspects of the Profit and Non-Profit Career
job descriptions. A varied business background that includes necessary skills (hospitality,
personality, integrity, follow-through) to set and accomplish goals and targets.

Skills in Marketing, writing, accountability, development, and editing. A quick learner with
any new functions. Reliable and dependable and able to work within a team as well as
independently. Motivated and understanding of all business (non-profit or for-profit) aspects.

Director of Operations- Cross Roads House in Portsmouth, NH (10/11-Present)

Providing stability, growth, and management for a large shelter (96 beds) for families and singles
in a progressive non-profit agency. The training and supervision of all Direct Care, Maintenance, .
Kitchen staff, with collaboration of case managers for the homeless population of seacoast.

Program Director of Share, Inc. Homestead (Family Homeless Shelter) Vancouver, WA
(1/08-10/11) and Woman’s Shelter that housed 12 Women in two Homes

Director of Share, Inc. Children’s Hunger Initiative (5/11-10/11)

Providing stability, growth, and management for two family shelters in a $5.2 million non-profit
agency. The training and supervision of Case Managers for the homeless population. Director of
BackPack Program (1,000 each week during school year) and SummerSLAM (eight sites)

Executive Director Pemi Youth Center Plymouth, NH (01/03 — 01/05)

Provided steady growth and stability to an emerging Main Street non-profit. (1/2 Time
Position) Grant writing, Program and Event Planning (along with Fundraisers) main focus.

Co-Director The Bridge House  Plymouth, NH  (01/03 — 01/05)

Provided steady leadership, case work with residents, and transition to an independent shelter
(July 2004) after 15 years under Tri-County CAP. Worked with past “umbrella Board” and
newly formed local Board to help facilitate building of new shelter (completed May 2005)
with $700,000 Community Development Block Grant and partnered private ($300,000)
fundraising.

Admin. Coordinator Whole Village Family Resource Center NH (2001-2003)
Facilitated a collaborative of 17 health and social service agencies.

Responsible for all aspects of property management, marketing, development of future plans
(including vision of on-site future homeless shelter) and office functions.

AmeriCorps Member Newfound Area School District NH (1996-1997)
Worked with at-risk students in Newfound Area School District on a one-year contract.
Worked and led with varied groups on positive collaborative projects in the Community.

President/ Charter Member White Mountain Toastmasters NH (2002 —-2011)

Helped form new non-profit with twenty members; it grew to 44 members, with experience
as VP of Education, VP of Marketing, and mentor to others with learning public speaking
skills.
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Operations Manager "+ Salem Children’s Trust & The Hunter School NH (2006)

A six-month contract to identify needed projects in two separate non-profits, research tasks,
and complete target goals. Oversaw eight departments that were “steadied” under operations
until grant funding for position ran out. All projects/ goals completed in a timely fashion.

Other Relevant Hospitality, Marketing, Business and Leadership Experience:
Retail Manager Sodexho Corporation @ Plymouth State University NH (2006-2007)

Owner/ GM Mitch’s Family (“Best NH Community 2005”) Restaurant (2005)
General Manager Village of Loon Mountain Lincoln, NH (1994-1996)
Owner/GM Olde Susannah’s Restaurant & Lounge NH (1983-1993)

Marketing Consultant: D.A.D. Enterprises (self-employed) NH  (1997-2001)
Reporter/ Columnist Coos County Democrat  Lancaster, NH (1984-1993)

Other Non-Profit and Volunteer Experiences

“Project Homebound” Independently founded Project, which created a 100% donation base
for feeding area “in need” families (greater Lancaster, NH area) at Thanksgiving time. Worked
in collaboration with Community to serve the area needy, as a private businessman.

Project Homebound still continues and Celebrates 30 years in the North Country of NH this
Thanksgiving. (1984-2014)

1970-1981: Many volunteer activities, including Easter Seals Camp

1991: The Lynsey House in Lancaster, NH. Worked to identify and bring initial Directors to
help found the Lynsey House (northern NH homeless shelter), in collaboration with agencies
and other community members. Helped to initiate/ coordinate the “Adopt-A-Room” Program to
renovate the initial building.

1991-1993; Budget Committee for the Town of Lancaster

1994-2002: Baseball, softball, soccer, and basketball coach in Plymouth, NH.
1997-2001: Actor/ Marketing Educational Theatre Collaborative (ETC) Plymouth, NH.

2004- 2007 and 2012-2013: Actor  Little Church Theatre Holderness, NH
1985-1992: Board Member Weathervane Theatre Whitefield, NH

2009-2010: Washington State Coalition for Homeless: Workshop (2-hour) Presenter

2011-current: Documentary Film Maker “Momentary Times” 4 months of traveling and
filming cross-country to highlight the issue of homelessness and solution-based ideas.

-Original Workshop two years-in-a-row “Hospitality, Humor, and Homelessness”

University of Oregon Business/ Psychology 1979-1981
Education Portland State University Business/ Marketing 1978

Mt. Hood Community College Business/ Marketing 1975-1977

Plymouth (NH) State University Community Development 2004
Personal Single Father reared “the two Best children in the World” Andrew (26) and Darcy (24).

Achievement . .
Both Andrew (May 2010 UNH and Masters Program 2014- Professor teaching UNH English) &

Darcy (2012 PSU and teaching Kindergarten students full time) are now successful and thriving
in Life.
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Experience

Education

Honors &
Affliations

Skills

References

Susan Darling Duchesney

L

2002-Current

Finance Director CrossRoads House

Manage accounting including payroll, government reporting and
audit preparation as well as human resources functions for major
seacoast nonprofit.

1996- Current AA Associates Portsmouth, NH
Accounting Consultant

Manage small business accounting in various industries. Types of
businesses include construction, property management, restaurants,
athletic clubs, and personal service corporations.

Consult with clients regarding budgeting, corporate development,
general operations, and equity analysis.

Set up and provide technical assistance on Quickbooks systems.

Prior to 1996-
Fiscal Director of major nonprofit organizations
including North Shore Elder Services, Preterm Clinic, Manchester
VNA and the Seacoast YWCA.

Adjunct Faculty at Seacoast Colleges including Granite State College
and Southern NH University

1991 Passed all parts of the CPA exam

2009 Graduate Certificate in Fraud Examination

2005 Southern New Hampshire University
M.S. in Accounting

1990 Mclintosh College

A.A. in Accounting (3.9 average)
1973-1975 University of NH,
graduate work in business administration
1964 University of NH
B.A in History cum laude

CPA candidate(test passed, absence of public accounting experience)
Associate member of AICPA
Certified Fraud Examiner, Member of ACFE

Excel, Quickbooks, most accounting software and 1040 tax software

Available upon request



SANDRA L. BEAUDRY
Licensed Marriage and Family Therapist

EDUCATION
Master of Science, December, 1992 Bachelor of Science,
September, 1987
Marriage and Family Therapy Human Services
University of New Hampshire University of Southern New Hampshire

CLINICAL AND SOCIAL SERVICE MANAGEMENT EXPERIENCE

CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES
Manchester, Concord, Portsmouth, NH February 1997 to present

Program Director October 2008 to present

Program Leadership and Supervision

e Direct statewide counseling and adolescent/young adult substance abuse treatment programs and a federally-
funded mentoring/family support program for youth being released from the Sununu Youth Services Center (joint
project with Goodwill of NNE)

e Supervise 14 direct report clinical staff and two interns

¢ Develop, monitor and maintain program budgets that have ranged from a total of $1 million to $1.4 million
annually

e Provide supervision and clinical support to the Seacoast Street Outreach Program mental health clinician and
oversee the mental health subcontract with the Healthcare for the Homeless program at Families First

e Supervised and coordinated the statewide CFS Deployment Cycle Support Program, which provided home-based
counseling and support to military service members and their families before, during, and after deployment,
through a subcontract with Easter Seals

¢ Directed the Family Intervention Program, state-contracted barrier-resolution services for TANF recipients in the
New Hampshire Employment Program across the state, including four sub-contracts with Family Resource
Centers

+ Provided administrative and clinical support to Healthy Marriage Responsible Fatherhood federal grant project
serving fathers in the state prison system and their families

e Developed and maintain procedure manuals for counseling and substance abuse treatment programs
Oversee quality assurance of clinical records and implementation of evidence-based practices
Support implementation of Trauma-Focused Cognitive Behavioral Therapy and trauma-informed care

Grants and Contracts

o Managed or co-managed four multi-year federal grants from SAMHSA, OJJDP, and ACF, including data
collection and reporting, continuation applications, annual progress reports, and no-cost extension requests

« Managed state contracts with BDAS, DOC, and DFA, including proposal writing and submission, data collection
and reporting, and budget development

¢ Write or contribute to grant proposals to foundations, including grants received from Peoples United Bank for
Seacoast office-based family counseling and Healthcare Gives for mobile mental health services in the Street
Outreach Program
Develop proposals and receive funding from United Way agencies across the state

s Write proposals to municipalities, including the city of Portsmouth, and present to town selectman or budget
meetings

e Facilitate agency contracts with managed care companies for counseling and substance abuse treatment
services and the credentialing of CFS clinical staff

s Provide the CFS agency administrator function for WITS, the web-based treatment, data, pay-for-performance,
and billing center for Access to Recovery and BDAS treatment contracts

Board and Community Involvement
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2
e Serve as the staff liaison to the CFS Seacoast Regional Advisory Board, facilitating monthly
meetings and their work in fundraising, including the RiverWoods Gala and the Lonza golf tournament
o Facilitate a multi-disciplinary advisory board for the CFS Adolescent Substance Abuse Treatment program with
representatives from prevention, treatment, school and juvenile justice service providers

» Represent CFS on the following boards; New Hampshire Alcohol and Other Drug Service Providers Association,
Health First (Laconia and Franklin), and Community Resource Network (Seacoast)

e Serve as Board Secretary and Conference Registrar for the New Hampshire Association for Infant Mental Health

» Arranged professional conferences in ethics and motivational interviewing for CFS and community clinical/social

work staff
Program Manager June 2007 to October 2008
Managed Family Intervention Program
Marriage and Family Therapist February 1997 to June
2007

Provided assessment and psychotherapy services to individuals, couples and families in a variety of Seacoast area
settings, including community-based therapy to individuals and families experiencing homelessness or housing insecurity
in conjunction with the Healthcare for the Homeless program, consultation to Community Child Care Center, and critical
incident response with the state Disaster Behavioral Health Response Team. Served on the board of SeaCare Health
Services for nine years as the mental health representative.

COMMUNITY PARTNERS

Rochester, NH

Home-Based Clinician May 1992 to February
1997

Provided home-based family therapy, case management, and provider consultation services to multi-problem families in
Strafford County. Taught Child Impact seminar for divorcing parents.

RESIDENTIAL AND CASE MANAGEMENT EXPERIENCE IN DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES

Service Coordinator October 1988 to August 1991
Provided service coordination and individual support to developmentally disabled adults and their families.
Merrimack Valley Case Management Team, Mass. Dept. of Mental Retardation, Haverhill, MA

Case Manager April 1987 to September 1988
Obtained and coordinated community services for developmentally disabled adults.
One Sky, Portsmouth, NH

Coordinator of Community Residences December 1984 to April
1987

Supervised the operation of four licensed community residences for developmentally disabled adults

Group Home Coordinator February 1983 to

December 1984
Established and managed group home for four deinstitutionalized men.
Sullivan County Developmental Services, Claremont, NH

Assistant Residential Program Supervisor March 1982 to January
1983
ACCESS, Conshohocken, PA

Resident Manager November 1980 to March 1982
River Crest Center, Mont Clare, PA

PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIP AND EDUCATION

203



3
Clinical Member and Approved Supervisor, American  Association of Marriage and Family Therapy

Associate Professor January 2013 to present
Spring Semester Marriage and Family Therapy Graduate Practicum, University of New Hampshire

Teaching Assistant September 1991 to May 1992
Introduction to Human Development course, University of New Hampshire
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from |
this Contract | this Contract

Martha Stone Executive Director 75000 0 0

Daniel Mitchell Operations Director 40000 0 0

Susan Duchesney Finance Director 31500 0 0

Sandra Beaudry Program Director 60000 0 0




FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: Emergency Solutions Grant Program
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1  State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address
Department of Health and Human Services 129 Pleasant Street
Office of Human Services Concord, NH 03301
1.3  Contractor Name 1.4  Contractor Address
My Friend's Place 368 Washington Street

Dover, NH 03820
1.5  Contractor Phone 1.6  Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation

Number

(603) 749-3017 010-042-7927-102-0731 December 31, 2014 $36,560.00
1.9  Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10  State Agency Telephone Number
Eric D. Borrin (603)271-9558
1.11 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

///MC,;S )Zru 4“”“ f VQS’"cﬂO"’;/

1.13 knowledgement: State ¢f/N\} , County of SM Hor A -

On 3!"3!"‘1, before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated in block
1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

[Seal] %& 914//17/

1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace
MEAGHAN A. CALLAGHAN, Notary Public
My Commission Expires May 6, 2014

" 1.14

1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

/ i e

" AL

o ) A:fmou?/‘ /’WMD'J/MN\.
1.16 Apprthe N.H. Depaﬁneg«(of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

State Agency Signa

By: Director, On:

T1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

v dvea YL o 3-3A~1Y

1.18 Approval by the Gov rnor and Executive Council
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State”), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date™).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
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5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 [n connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 1fthis Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity”), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is maierially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

Contractor Initials: & /:

Date:m ] 4



8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default”):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report™) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
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Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each

Contractor Initials: \/;




certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers” Compensation™).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers” Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

Page 4 of 4

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Contractor Initials: _° ; 1% 'z \Q]
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Emergency Solutions Grant

1. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT

1.1

Notwithstanding any provisions of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the
State are contingent upon receipt of federal funds under the Emergency Services
Grant. The State has applied for the Emergency Services Grant and will continue to
perform due diligence in the application process. However, the State makes no
representation that it will receive the funds. In no event shall the State be liable for
costs incurred or payment of any services performed by the Contractor prior to the
State’s receipt of federal funds applied for in the Emergency Services Grant.

2. PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO ALL SERVICES:

2.1

22

23

24

25

26

Except as otherwise modified in paragraphs of EXHIBIT A, the Contractor agrees to
comply with the program narrative, budget detail and narrative, and amendments
thereto, for Services, operations, prevention, acquisition, or rehabilitation as approved
by the Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services, Office of Human Services,
Department of Health and Human Services, hereafter referred to as the State.

The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right, following consultation with the Contractor, to
modify service priorities and expenditure requirements for the funds provided under
this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

The Contractor shall pursue any and all appropriate public sources of funds that are
applicable to the funding of the Services, operations, prevention, acquisition, or
rehabilitation. Appropriate records shall be maintained by the Contractor to document
actual funds received or denials of funding from such public sources of funds.

The Contractor shall provide semiannual and annual report information data by service
modality describing the number of unduplicated cases served, units of services
rendered, and staff required to provide the service, as may be required by the State.
Monthly reports may be required at the discretion of the State.

All programs under this contract that are emergency shelters, transitional programs or
permanent programs are required to be licensed to provide client level data into the
New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System (NH HMIS). Programs
under this contract must be familiar with and follow NH HMIS policy, including specific
information that is required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and time required
for data entry. Current NH HMIS policy can be accessed electronically through the
following website: http://www.nh-hmis.org.

Failure to submit the above reports or enter data into HMIS in a timely fashion could
result in the delay or withholding of reimbursements until such reports are received or
data entries are confirmed by the State.

3. SERVICES:
The Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that during the term of this Agreement, it will

provide services in accordance with the description(s) cited below:

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit A

3.1 Emergency Solutions Grant Program, 24 CFR part 576

3.2 Contractor shall use the US Dept of Housing and Urban Development Emergency
Solutions Grant funds for:

O Prevention/Intervention Services, such as rent with eviction notice, mortgage with
foreclosure notice, utilities with disconnect notice, and other activities to prevent
homelessness.

O Essential Services, such as assistance in finding permanent housing,
employment counseling, substance abuse counseling, assistance in accessing
other community services, and staff salaries and benefits.

& Operations Activities, including shelter operational costs such as rent, utilities,
insurance, and supplies.

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit A
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit B

METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

Emergency Solutions Grant

The following financial conditions apply to the scope of services as detailed in Exhibit A —
Emergency Solutions Grant

This contract is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made
available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA), as follows:

NH General Fund: Not applicable

Federal Funds:

CFDA #: 14.231

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development
Program Title: Emergency Solutions Grant

Total Amount Emergency Solutions Grant Program;

2014: not to exceed $36,560.00

Funds allocation under this agreement for Emergency Solutions Grant Program;
Operating expenses: $36,560.00

Total program amount: $36,560.00

1. Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory
completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement, the State agrees to fund
the Contractor for operations, supportive services, leasing and administration utilizing funds
provided through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
Emergency Solutions Grant Program, in an amount not to exceed and for the time period
specified above.

2. REPORTS.

As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the following:

2.1. Progress Reports: Semiannual and annual financial and statistical progress reports
which identify the status of the Services performed, the outlook for completion of the
remaining services prior to the Completion Date and the changes, if any, which need to
be made to the services, shall be submitted by the 15th of the month following the end
of each six month period on forms supplied by the State.

2.2. Audited Financial Report. The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in
accordance with the regulations that implement OMB Circular A-133. Three (3) copies
of the audited financial report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days of the completion
of said report to the State.

2.3. Where the Contractor is not subject to the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, within
ninety (90) days after the Completion or Termination Date, one copy of an audited
financial report shall be submitted to the State. Said audit shall be conducted utilizing
the guidelines set forth in “Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Program
Activities, and Functions” by the Comptroller General of the United States.

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit B Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit B

3. PROJECT COSTS: PAYMENT SCHEDULE; REVIEW BY THE STATE.

3.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term “Project Costs” shall mean all
expenses directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the
Project Activities, as determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment in
accordance with Public Law 102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in
OMB Circular A-87 as revised from time to time and with the rules, regulations, and
guidelines established by the State. Nonprofit subcontractors shall meet the
requirements of OMB Circular A-122.

3.2. Payment of Project Costs: Subject to the general provisions of this Agreement and in
consideration of the satisfactory completion of the Services to be performed under this
Agreement, the State agrees to purchase from the Contractor, in the amount not to
exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8 of the General Provisions of this
Agreement. The State agrees to provide funds for homeless services in payments in
accordance with such other schedules as may be required by HUD under the provisions
of 24 CFR Part 576, Emergency Solutions Grants Program; HEARTH Act and all
applicable regulations.

3.3. The Contractor shall submit documentation of expenditures of Federal funds at the
conclusion of each bimonthly period or any other such schedule as may be required. In
no event shall the funds provided exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8 of
the General Provisions. Upon release of additional Federal funding to the State, the
Contractor may invoice for balance of contracted amount as specified in block 1.8
based on documentation of expenditures.

3.4. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs: At any time during the performance of the
Services, and upon receipt of the semiannual reports, termination Report or Audited
Financial Report, the State may review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and
all payments made to date. Upon such review, the State shall disallow any items of
expense which are not determined to be allowable or are determined to be in excess of
actual expenditures, and shall, by written notice specifying the disallowed expenditures,
inform the Contractor of any such disallowance. If the State disallows costs for which
payment has not been made, it shall refuse to pay such costs. Any amounts awarded
to the Contractor pursuant to this Agreement are subject to recapture pursuant to 24
CFR Subsection 576.55.

4. USE OF GRANT FUNDS.

Conformance to 24 CFR Part 84. Grant funds are to be used only in accordance with
procedures, requirements and principles specified in 24 CFR Part 84.

5. CONTRACTOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM.

Line Item Transfers: Funds may not be transferred between programs nor may funds be
transferred between line items as appears on the budget page without the prior written
authorization from the State. Any expenditures which exceed the approved budgets shall be
solely the financial responsibility of the Contractor. However, such excess expenditures
may be covered by the transfer of other funds where such transfer is permissible by this
Agreement. In any event, the Contractor shall be required to continue providing the
Services specified in this Agreement. The Contractor shall make no adjustments so as to
incur additional expenses in State funded programs in subsequent years without prior
written authorization from the State.

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit B Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit B
Emergency Solutions Grant
EXPENSE BUDGET for 2014:
Federal
EXPENSE ITEM HEARTH Funds Match
Operations $36,560.00 $36,560.00
Shelter operational costs such
as rent, utilities, insurance,
and supplies
TOTALS $36,560.00 $36,560.00
TOTAL Federal+Match $73,120.00

CA/DHHS/100213

Exhibit B
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to filf out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
fundors for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party fundors, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in
excess of costs;
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the repaort be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, ail payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.
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1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following

times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resuiting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1.  The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. if any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and reguiations.

Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
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subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated

function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting

responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revaking the delegation or imposing sanctions if

the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual

conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance

with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

16.1.  Evaluate the prospective subcontractor’s ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

16.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor’'s
performance is not adequate

16.3.  Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

16.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

16.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4.

CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

CU/DHHS/110713

The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.
The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Pian.

The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the propesed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

Exhibit C-1 — Revisions to Standard Provisions Contractor Initials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee wili
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Empioyers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Workplace Requirements
CU/DHHS/110713 Page 1 of 2 Date
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)
Check 0O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name:
My Friend! ace

SO

A /
N?g?' FX Bruton
Titlgy President
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title 1V

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor,).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-I.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name:

MAK . 0 010 m

Date me FX Bruton
|e President
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services’ (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous cettification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

” o T

5. The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F — Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Contractor Initials @
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (I)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

My Frie s /Place
BAK 0 2014 JQIM
Na ’ )

Date : FX B
Titlef ruton
President
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING
THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following

certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts
to comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

Contractor Name:
My Fr Place

2

tlm'e FX Bruton
e President

Exhibit G — Certification Regarding Contractor Initials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:

I I M end's Plac
. o e
Date € FX Bruton
Tle: President
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILTY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to comply with
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and with the Standards for
Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164 and those
parts of the HITECH Act applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business Associate” shall
mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that receive, use or have access to
protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered Entity” shall mean the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

Definitions

1. “Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach” in Title XXX, Subtitle D. Sec. 13400.

2. “Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Tile 45, Code of Federal
Regulations.

3. “Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code of Federal
Regulations.

4. 'Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

5. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR Section
164.501.

6. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations” in 45
CFR Section 164.501.

7. “HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act,
TitleXIll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009.

8. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 104-191
and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR
Parts 160, 162 and 164.

9. “Individual’ shall have the same meaning as the term “individual’ in 45 CFR Section 164.501 and
shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.501(g).

10. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information at
45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States Department of Heaith
and Human Services.

11. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 164.501, limited to the information created or received by Business
Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

12. “Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR Section
164.501.

13. "Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or his/her
designee.

14. "Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected Health
Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

15. “Unsecured Protected Health Informatiorn” means protected health information that is not secured by
a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable, unreasonable, or
indecipherabie to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by a standards developing
organization that is accredited by the American National Standards Institute.

16. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning established under
45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the HITECH Act.

Exhibit | —~ Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act Contractor Initials \
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information

1.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health Information (PHI)
except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under Exhibit A of the Agreement.
Further, the Business Associate shall not, and shall ensure that its directors, officers, employees and
agents, do not use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:

2.1. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;

2.2. Asrequired by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or

2.3. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a third party,
Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i} reasonable assurances from
the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and used or further disclosed only as required
by law or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such
third party to notify Business Associate, in accordance with the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec.
13402 of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained knowledge of
such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to provide services
under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a request for disclosure on the
basis that it is required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an
opportunity to object to the disclosure and to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such
disclosure, the Business Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has
exhausted all remedies.

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to be bound by
additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall be bound by such additional
restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of such additional restrictions and shall abide by
any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate

1.

Business Associate shall report to the designated Privacy Officer of Covered Entity, in writing, any
use or disclosure of PHI in violation of the Agreement, including any security incident involving
Covered Entity data, in accordance with the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13402.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy and Security Rule as set forth in,
the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13401 and Sec.13404.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books and records
relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or received by the Business
Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for purposes of determining Covered Entity's
compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have access to PHI
under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same restrictions and conditions on the use
and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided
under Section (3)b and (3)k herein. The Covered Entity shall be considered a direct third party
beneficiary of the Contractor’s business associate agreements with Contractor’s intended business
associates, who will be receiving PHI pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and
indemnification from such business associates who shall be governed by standard provision #13 of
this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of protected health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity, Business Associate
shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all records, books, agreements,
policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes
of enabling Covered Entity to determine Business Associate’'s compliance with the terms of the

Agreement.
Exhibit | — Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act Contractor Initials M
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit |

6. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, Business Associate
shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the Covered Entity, or as directed by
Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

7. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an amendment of
PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set, the Business Associate
shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for amendment and incorporate any such
amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

8. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to such
disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an individual for an
accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

9. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a request for an
accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available to Covered Entity such
information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations to provide an accounting of
disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

10. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI directly from the
Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2) business days forward such request
to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the responsibility of responding to forwarded requests.
However, if forwarding the individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the
Business Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall
instead respond to the individual’s request as required by such law and notify Covered Entity of such
response as soon as practicable.

11. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the Business
Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate in connection with the Agreement, and shall not retain any copies
or back-up tapes of such PHI. [f return or destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has
been otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the
protections of the Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business Associate maintains
such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the Business Associate destroy any or
all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

1. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its Notice of Privacy
Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the extent that such
change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

2. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of
permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or disclosed by
Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 164.506 or 45 CFR Section
164.508.

3. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or disclosure of
PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, to the extent that such
restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

Termination for Cause

In addition to standard provision #10 of this Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the
Agreement upon Covered Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business
Associate Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately terminate
the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the alleged breach within a
timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity determines that neither termination nor cure is
feasible, Covered Entity shall report the violation to the Secretary.

Exhibit | — Health insurance Portability and Accountability Act Contractor Initials
Business Associate Agreement
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Miscellaneous

1.

Definitions and Reguiatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein, shall have
the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, and the HITECH Act as amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit |, to a Section in
the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is necessary to
amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered Entity to compiy with the
changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule, and applicable federal and
state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights with respect
to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved to permit
Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule and the HITECH Act.
Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any person(s) or
circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or conditions which can be
given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the terms and conditions of this Exhibit |
are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or destruction of
PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section 3 k, the defense and indemnification
provisions of section 3 d and standard contract provision #13, shall survive the termination of the
Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Contractor Name:

Tige: President

Date N;/ﬂe: FX Bruton

Stit)e ’ﬁﬁ%ﬁgme:

2/ 1/, /4 ﬁ/kﬂ (Lw{ﬁz

Date’ [/ Name: )

CU/DHHS/110713 Page 4 of 4

Title: ' .
" Ascocats Corrmn o8~ _
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entity
Principle place of performance
Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
0. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensaticn information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

SOOoNOORWN

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

%ﬂ'ﬂ G . My Friepd:

Place

. [4
Date Nadpie: px Bruton
Title: President
Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor tq
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance { 0"
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Exhibit J

FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: 017249801

2. In your business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

__ X NO ____YES
If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here
If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials
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State of Nefw Hampshive
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby _
certify. that MY FRIEND'S PLACE is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation formed
February 3, 1987. I further certify that it is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto

- set my hand and cause to be affixed -

~ the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 12" day of June A.D. 2013

oy ikl

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I Brenda Gaudet , do hereby certify that:
{Name of the elected Officer of the Agency; cannct be contract signatory)

1. t am a duly elected Officer of My Friend's Place
{Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of two resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly heldon 2/11/2014
(Date)

RESOLVED: That the President
(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the 10th day of March 2014
{Date Contract Signed)
4. Francis X. Bruton is the duly elected President
{Name of Contract Signatory) (Title of Contract Signatory)

of the Agency.
WW ety

(Sigrature of the Elecfed Officer)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this __// day of M 20 [ %

Name of Elected Officer of the Agency) : f Wz

{Notary Public/Justice of the Peace)

INOTARY SEAL

Commission Expires: A-R0~/ g

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal

July 1, 2005



Client#: 1009192

ACORD..

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

MYFRI

DATE (MM/DDIYYYY)
03/17/2014

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER
USI Insurance Services LLC-SCL

PO Box 406

SONIACT | inda Turcotte

ONE

TIC, No, Ext): 800-639-4671 Fg)é No):

EMAL ss: linda.turcotte@usi.biz

Portland, ME 04112-0406 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE L NAIC #
INsureR A : Arch Insurance Company 11150
INSURED INSURER B : American Alternative Insurance 19399
My Friend's Place, Inc. ‘
i INSURER C :
368 Washington Street INSURER D -
Dover, NH 03820 ) :
INSURERE : ;
INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

SUBR|
IIFTSRR TYPE OF INSURANCE I;IDSDL SUBR POLICY NUMBER (v:ahn'g)(v%) (53}758%) LIMITS i
A | GENERAL LIABILITY NCPKG0183002 07/24/2013|07/24/2014 EACH OCCURRENCE 51,000,000
x| COMMERGIAL GENERAL LIABILITY PR 3 ence) | 100,000
| CLAIMS-MADE i OCCUR MED EXP (Any one person) $5,000
- PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | 51,000,000
L ‘ GENERAL AGGREGATE 2,000,000
GENLAGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER. ‘ PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | $2,000,000
\ POLICY FRO: |l ] $
A | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY | |NCAUTO183002 7/24/2013|07/24/2014 & edieny o= -™T  |$1,000,000
7;} ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | §
ﬁb&rgg’NED iSHgDULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | §
| X| NON- OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
| | HIRED AUTOS AUTO (Per accident)
3
A | X| UMBRELLALIAB OCCUR NCFXS0183000 07/24/2013 | 07/24/2014 EACH OCCURRENCE 51,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE 51,000,000
pep | X retenTions10000 : $
WORKERS COMPENSATION WC STATU- OTH-
B | AND EMPLOYERS® LIABILITY YN 1NA2WC0000761 09/26/2013/09/26/2014 X i ToRY | IMITS ‘ER
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $500,000
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? NI [N/A
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| $500,000
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - PoLIcY LimiT | $500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)

Evidence of Insurance

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

State of New Hampshire, Dept of
Health & Human Services, Bureau
of Homeless and Housing

129 Pleasant St

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Concord NH :
| é . é)\(u z-—vv-
© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2010/05) 1 of1 The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

#511832689/M10572468

DAKCA
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Hodgdon, Wilson & Griffin
Certified Public Accountants, P.A.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

To the Board of Trustees
My Friend's Place
Dover, New Hampshire

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of
My Friend‘s Place (a Nonprofit Organization) as of June 30, 2012 and
the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash
flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Organization’'s ganagement. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these f€ryncial statements based on our

audits.

We conducted our audit in accoplaNg th auditing standards generally
accepted in the United Sta %gh-‘ erica. Those standards require
that we plan and perform it to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial sta ts are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining¥on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
"estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides

a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of My
Friend’s Place as of June 30, 2012 and the changes in its net assets
and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

America.

Hodgdon, Wilson & Griffin

DATE



MY FRIEND’'S PLACE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
June 30, 2012

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS -
Cash and cash equivalents - $ 105,247
Investments ) . ) 758
Inventory . ’ 4,102
Prepaid expenses ) 4,723
Employee loans ' . 885
Total current assets ) . 115,715
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Land .. : 87,150
Buildings and improvements 767,342
Furniture and fixtures : . 39,985
Equipment 6,187
Total property and equipment . . 900,664
Less accumulated depreciation 4<;\§ 352,331
Net property and equipment Q . . 548,333
ENDOWMENT INVESTMENTS . ?\ 8,869
NET ASSETS . 2 $.672,917
- LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES .
Accounts payable . $ 6,180
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 7,103
Accrued earned time . 8,694
Note payable, current portion . - - 6,795
Total current liabilities : 28,772
NOTE PAYABLE, net of current portion 36,204
Total liabilities 64,976
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted 599,072
Temporarily restricted -
Permanently restricted 8,869
Total net assets 607,941
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS : $ 672,917

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MY FRIEND'S PLACE
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS
Public support and revenue:
Public support
Grants
Donations
United Way
Total public support

OTHER REVENUE

Bingo proceeds, net

Rent and miscellaneous

Other gaming revenue

Interest income

Unrealized loss on investments
Total other revenue
Total public support and revenue

FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
Program services "
Management and. general 7 .
Fundraising
Total functional expenses %
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN UNRESTR T ASSETS

TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS
PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS’
Investment income (loss), net of fees
Distributions
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS
INCREAQE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, Beginning

NET-ASSETS, Ending

$ 161,147
75,775 "
19,631

256,553

76,098
20,032
11,012
247

( 17)
107,372
363,925

292,413
. 60,798
14,669
367,880

{ 3,955)

441

441

( 3,514)

611,455

$ 607,941

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Classified advertising and

public relations
Depreciation expense
Employee benefits
Insurance

Interest expense
Maintenance and repairs
Miscellaneous
office expense
Professional. fees

Resident support services -

Salaries and wages
Supplies

Taxes, payroll
Telephone

Training
Transportation expense
Utilities

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

MY FRIEND'S PLACE
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Management

Program and General Fundraising
- $ 615 $ -
19,398 655 : -
38,679 7,736 1,934
7,519 4,686 -
2,966 156 -
19,781 686 -
3,290 720 1,112
118 567 2,554
- 7,706 -
1,334 .- -
143,638 28,729 7,180
6,431 ‘4,645 1,161
14,564 2,913 728
4,086 215 -
67 - -
769 -
§ 60,798 $ 14,669

Total

s - 615
20,053
48,349
12,205

3,122
20,467
5,122
3,239
7,706
1,334
179,547
12,237
18,205
4,301
671
726

29,981

$ 367,880

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



MY FRIEND’'S PLACE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Increase (decrease) in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Unrealized loss on investments .
Investment (income) loss, net of fees
Distributions from permanently restricted
net assets
Depreciation
(Increase) . decrease in:
Grants receivable
~ Inventory
Prepaid expenses

Employee loans .

Increase (decrease) in: X

Accounts payable {

Accrued payroll and payroll tages .
Accrued earned time % )

Total adjustments E ] ’

Net cash provided (used) by ofrating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

CASH FLOWS FROM "FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal reduction of long-term debt

Increase (decredse) in cash
Cash at beginning of year

CASH AT END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid during the year for interest-

$( 3,514)

17
( 441)

20,053

( 2,026)
3,158
( 885)
5,229

339

23,742

20,228

( 3,406)

(_6,312)

10,510
94,737

$ 105,247

$ 3,122

The accompanying notes are an integral part-of these financial statements.
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MY FRIEND'S PLACE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organlzatlon

My Friend‘’s Place was organized February 3, 1987. The purpose of the organiza-
tion is to provide safe and supportive emergency and-transitional shelter to
individuals and families experlenclng homelessness in Strafford County, New

Hampshire.

Basis of Accounting )
Income and expenses are reported on the accrual basis, which means that income

is recognized as it is earned and expenses are recognized as they are incurred
whether or not cash is received or paid out at that time.

Financial Statement Presentation
My Friend‘’s Place reports information regarding its financial position and

activities according to three classes of t assets: unrestricted net assets,
temporarily restricted net assets, and anently restricted net assets. 1In
addition, My Friend’s Place is requir -esent a statement of cash flows.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of ca
liqguid investments available
months or less to be cash equl‘—

s, My Friend’s Place considers all highly
‘ rent use with an initial maturity of three
hts.

My Friend’'s Place maintains a repurchasing account with a banking institution.
Repurchase agreements are short-term investments, typically sold by banks as
alternatives to certificates of deposit. Transfers to and from the account are
made daily to cover checks clearing in operating accounts. The repurchase account
held by My Friend’'s Place is collateralized by a pool of U.S. Government agencies

or U.S. Treasury notes.

Cash does not include $32,128 held by the Organlzatlon as of June 30, 2012. As
required by State of New Hampshire regulations, this amount was held by the
Organization in a separate account to be used as prizes for Blngo games. This
cash is not available for any other purpose.

Marketable Securities
Investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair values and

all investments in debt securities are reported at their fair values in the
statement of financial position. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the

change in net assets.




MY FRIEND'S PLACE
NOTES TO FINANCIAIL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

<

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Promises to Give .
Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to My Friend’s

Place that is, in substance, unconditional. Contributions that are restricted
by the donor are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets if the
restrictions expire in the fiscal year in which the contributions are recognized.
All other donor-restricted contributions are reported as increases in temporarily
or permanently restricted net assets depending on the nature of the restrictions.
When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified
to unrestricted net assets. An allowance for uncollectible unconditional
promises to give is established based on historical experience and management’s
evaluation of ocutstanding unconditional promises to give at the end of each year.
During the year ended June 30 2012, management detemined that certain grants
previously recorded as Promises to Give were not contributions. As a result,
Promises to Give as of June 30, 2012 was .

Fair vValue of Financial Instruments

Unless otherwise indicated, the fair udls of all reported assets and liabilities
which represent financial instrume . f which are held for trading purposes,
app-rdximgte the carrying values amounts.

Inventory

Inventory of Bingo materials and sMbplies are recoxrded at the lower of cost (first
in, first out basis) or market.

Property, Plant and Equipment .
Property and equipment are recorded at cost for those items which have been

purchased, and at estimated fair values for those items which have been donated.
The cost basis of the land and buildings acquired by My Friend’s Place is allocated
based on real estate tax valuation. The cost of buildings and improvements is
recovered using the straight-line method over estimated useful lives of 10 to 40
years. The cost of furniture, fixtures and equipment is recovered using the
straight-line method over estimated useful lives of 5 to 15 years.

Restatement of Financial Statements
The'opening balance of Temporarily Restricted Net Assets has been decreased $85,771

for the year ending June 30, 2012. Management has determined that certain grants
previously recorded with Temporarily Restricted Net Assets were not contributions.

Contributions
Contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or

permanently restricted support depending on the existence or nature of any donor
restrictions.




MY FRIEND'S PLACE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Donated Services .
Contributions of services are recognized in the financial statements if the

services enhance or create nonfinancial assets or require specialized skills, are
provided by individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to be
purchased if not provided by donation. My Friend’s Place typically receives
contributed services to assist with general administrative and maintenance tasks.
For the year ended June 30, 20i2, no amounts for contributions of services were

recognized in the financial statements.

Donated Materials _—
My Friend’s Place records donated materials at fair value. Donations of food,

personal care items and household supply items for the use of residents are not
recorded in the financial statements because of the difficulty in determining fair

value.
Functional Allocation of Expenses “;\k

The costs of the various programs ang.otger activities have been summarized on
a functional basis. Accordingly, ) e been allocated among the programs: .

and supporting services benefite

Income Taxes ) )
My Friend’s Place has received a’ ter of determination dated June 20, 1988 from

the Internal Revenue Service advising it that it qualifies as a non-profit
organization under Section 501(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code and, therefore,
it is not subject to income tax. My Friend's Place is classified as other than

a private foundation.

Use of Estimates .
The preparation of financial statements in conformity -with generally accepted

accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Acc¢ordingly, actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Subsecquent Events
Management has evaluated subseguent events through ~------- DATE-~---~-- , the date

that the financial statements were available to be issued.




MY FRIEND’'S PLACE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE B - ENDOWMENT INVESTMENTS

My Friend’'s Place is a beneficiary of an agency endowment fund at The New Hampshire
Charitable Foundation. Pursuant to the terms of the resolution establishing this
fund, property contributed to The New Hampshire Charitable Foundation is held as
a separate fund designated for the benefit of My Friend‘s Place: In accordance
with its spending policy, the Foundation makes distributions from the funds to
My Friend’s Place. The distributions are approximately five percent of the market
value of the fund per year. The estimated value of the future distributions from
the fund is included in these financial statements, however, all property in the
fund was contributed to The New Hampshire Charitable Foundation to be held and
administered for the benefit of My Friend’s Place.

The :endowment investments consist primarily of pooled .investments. Pooled
investments are allocated as follows for the years ended June 30, 2012:

Equity securities 40%
Hedge funds 22%
. 11%-

Fixed income

Inflation hedging 10%
Private equity/s#®xtie capital 10%
Cash and cas ents 7%

NOTE C - ACCRUED EARNED TIME

Accrued earned time consists of a liability for future compensated leave time that
is vested with the employees. : .



MY FRIEND’'S PLACE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE D - NOTE PAYABLE

Current’ Long-term
Portion Portion Total
Mortgage payable, secured by land and
building at 368 Washington Street- in
bDover, NH; monthly payments of principal
and interest only at 6.61%; maturity date
is December, 2017. $ 6,795 $ 36,204 $ 42,999

Maturity of long-term debt over the next five years is as follows for years ending

June 30,
2013. .. .. 0. $ 6,795
2014. .. ... 1,258

TOTAL. . .$ 42,999
NOTE E - RESTRICTIONS ON NET A

Temporarily restricted net assets consisted of amounts for subsequent periods.
As of June 30, 2012, temporarily restricted net assets was $0.

As of June 30, 2012, My Friend's Place has permanently restricted net assets ‘of
$8,869 invested with The New Hampshire Charitable Foundation. )

NOTE F - BINGO PROCEEDS, NET

For the year ended June 30, 2012 bingo proceeds, net of $76,098 consisted of bingo -’
revenue of $262, 832 and other gaming revenue of $565, 040 less expenses of $751,774.

10~



MY FRIEND’'S PLACE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE G - RETIREMENT PLAN

My Friend’s Place has adgopted a 403 (b) retirement plan. Under the plan, employees
who meet certain age and length of service requirements may elect to defer a
percentage of their salary, subject to Internal Revenue Service limits. My

Friend’s Place matches the employee deferral up to 5% of the employee’s salary.
For the year ended June 30, 2012, retirement expense was $2,635.

NOTE H - LEASING ARRANGEMENTS

My Friend's Place rents property under cancelable leasing arrangements.

NOTE I - CREDIT RISK CONCENTRATION

As of June 30, 2012, My Friend’s Place h 4%&.’{1427 in a repurchase account which
is included in the cash balance. This Znoynt¥s collateralized by a pool of U.S.
Government agencies or U.S. TreasuryeQodgs. These amounts are considered cash
equivalents. They are not insured deral Deposit Insurance Corporation.

NOTE J - ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

My Friend's Place contracts are generally with government agencies and, therefore,
the majority of its receivables and a significant amount of its revenue are derived

from that source.

In addition, My Friend's Place has received a significant amount of its fundraising
revenue from the operation of Bingo games.

-11-



MY FRIEND’S PLACE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE K - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

During the year ended June 30, 1998, My Friend's Place received a grant from the
United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). The $99,566
grant was used towards the acquisition of a transitional housing facility located
at 21-23 Hough Street in Dover, New Hampshire. Under the terms of the grant, My
Friend's Place would have to receive authorization from HUD in order to comnvert
the transitional housing facility to another use. Failure to receive authoriza-
tion from HUD would result in repayment of the grant to HUD.

My Friend's Place received money under various state and federal grants. Under
the terms of these grants, My Friend's Place was required to use the money within
the grant period for purposes specified in the grant proposal. If expenditures
of the grant were found not to have been made in compliance with the proposals,
My Friend's Place might be required to repay the grantor’s funds.

<
Q\ |



MY FRIEND’S PLACE

Mission statement

‘My Friend’s Place is organized to operate exclusively for
educational and charitable purposes, including but not limited to
providing temporary emergency housing and support for
individuals and families in Strafford County who need such
assistance because of an emergency or adverse situation.
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Robert M.O’Connell

WORK EXPERIENCE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR: 1995 — present. My Friend’s Place, Dover, NH. Direct all
activities for a private not for profit shelter serving homeless individuals and families.
Planned, organized, and implemented new services through a $600,000 grant for
Transitional Housing for homeless families. Raised over $250,000 to build an addition
to the shelter and to meet ADA compliance standards. Negotiated mortgages and line of
credit with local lending institution. Work with a volunteer board of directors in all
aspects of policy development, fund-raising and grant writing.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, 1988 — 1994. Haverhill Newburyport Human Services,
Inc. Directed program, planning, fiscal and administrative activities for a $3.5 million
private corporation with a staff of 135, serving developmentally disabled people and their
families. Primary responsibilities included board relations, program planning and
evaluation, policy development, community and legislative relations, and fund raising.

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES DIRECTOR: 1984 — 1988. Haverhill
Newburyport Human Services. Directed financial and administrative activities including
the preparation of financial reports, preparing and managing budgets, implementing a
computerized accounting system. Coordinated internal/external audits, and negotiated
rates with funding sources. Directed Human Resource management and payroll systems.
Supervised acquisition and management of buildings, equipment, and external
contractors. Negotiated line of credit and mortgages with financial institutions.

PROGRAM DIRECTOR: 1979 — 1983 Community action Inc, Haverhill MA.
Managed the Department of Energy weatherization the Low Income Home energy
Assistance Programs. Implemented new services, such as the energy assistance program
and a nationally recognized energy efficiency program. Wrote grant applications,
prepared and monitored budgets. Recruited, trained and supervised a staff of 30.
Appointed member of the City of Haverhill energy conservation commission with
responsibility for winter emergency planning.

ACTION - VISTA VOLUNTEER 1975 — 1976. Community organizer for the
Samahan Development Corporation in Stockton, CA. Wrote grant applications,
organized a community food coop, and prepared the mental health component of the
Stockton Community Health Plan. Developed programs for the San Joaquin County
Indian lodge alcohol treatment center. University year for ACTION. North Shore
community college, Beverly MA. Wrote grant application and developed program
budget. Recruited and trained the first class of University Year for ACTION volunteers
for a Massachusetts Community College.



ADDITION INFORMATION:

Current Affiliations

Member of the National Ski Patrol at Gunstock Recreation area. Elected as NH Region
Director. Certified as an outdoor emergency care instructor and American Heart
Association CPR instructor. Certified as an Emergency Medical Technician.

Member of Rotary Club of Dover, NH. Club President 2004/05.

Past Affiliations

Former member and treasurer of the John Ashford Link House board of directors.
Private organization providing residential and therapeutic services for alcohol and drug
addicted men.

Former board member and treasurer - American Red Cross, Strafford County.

Former board member and treasurer of the Dover Adult Learning Center. A non-profit
organization providing high school diploma and GED preparation for adults.

Former Board member, Rockingham Community Action, Inc.
Former Board Member, treasurer and Incorporator of the Homeless Center for Strafford
County. A seasonal shelter providing emergency shelter for homeless women and

families

United States Army veteran. Served as a personnel specialist in the Republic of Vietnam,

EDUCATION
Master of Human Service Management, Lesley University, Cambridge MA 1985
Bachelors Degree, Education, University of Massachusetts, Amherst. 1975

Associate of Science Business Management/Accounting. North Shore Community
College, 1972



MY FRIEND'S PLACE
KEY PERSONNEL

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from Amount Paid from
This Contract this contract

Robert O'Connell Executive Director 52,031 5% 2602



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: Emergency Solutions Grant Program
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1  State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address
Department of Health and Human Services 129 Pleasant Street
Office of Human Services Concord, NH 03301
1.3  Contractor Name 1.4  Contractor Address
The Salvation Army 177 Union Avenue
(Carey House) Laconia, NH 03246
1.5  Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation
Number
(603) 528-8086 'OT%’-U4‘2‘-79'27§1§0(‘)2£—‘%73‘71’927 December 31, 2014 $33,248.00
¥32230873f:
1.9  Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10  State Agency Telephone Number
Eric D. Borrin (603) 271-9558
I
1.11 Contract / 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
Richard D. Allen, Assistant Secretary - Legal

1.13 Awmdiﬁnent: State of _N_Y , County of RockJand

2/11/2014
On , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is sxgned in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated in block
1 12,

1.13.1 Signature f otary Publlc or Justice of the Peace

[Seal]

1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justlce of the Peace

Tahnia Wilson, Notary Public State of New York, No. 01 W16213088
Qualified in Rockland County, Commission Expires November 2, 2017

1.14 State Agency Signatu 1. 15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
2 Cool

74mc,,mr (orwaints cne

1.16 Approval blthe N.H. Departrgent 4f Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

By: 25: /\&L], On: 3.)\#{5

1.18 Approval by the Goyernor and Executive Council

Page 1 of 4



2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor™) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date”).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

Page 2 of 4

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actuaily
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY. ,

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity™), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws,

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

Contractor Initials: : @E;

Date: _ 02/11/2014



8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination,
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report™) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
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Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11, CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14,2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each

Contractor Initials: Z § i

Date: 02/11/2014



certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement, Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers” Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.
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20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22, SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Contractor Initials: é ; E 2
Date:



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Emergency Solutions Grant

1.

3.

CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT

1.1

Notwithstanding any provisions of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the
State are contingent upon receipt of federal funds under the Emergency Services
Grant. The State has applied for the Emergency Services Grant and will continue to
perform due diligence in the application process. However, the State makes no
representation that it will receive the funds. In no event shall the State be liable for
costs incurred or payment of any services performed by the Contractor prior to the
State's receipt of federal funds applied for in the Emergency Services Grant.

PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO ALL SERVICES:

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

Except as otherwise modified in paragraphs of EXHIBIT A, the Contractor agrees to
comply with the program narrative, budget detail and narrative, and amendments
thereto, for Services, operations, prevention, acquisition, or rehabilitation as approved
by the Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services, Office of Human Services,
Department of Health and Human Services, hereafter referred to as the State.

The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right, following consultation with the Contractor, to
modify service priorities and expenditure requirements for the funds provided under
this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

The Contractor shall pursue any and all appropriate public sources of funds that are
applicable to the funding of the Services, operations, prevention, acquisition, or
rehabilitation. Appropriate records shall be maintained by the Contractor to document
actual funds received or denials of funding from such public sources of funds.

The Contractor shall provide semiannual and annual report information data by service
modality describing the number of unduplicated cases served, units of services
rendered, and staff required to provide the service, as may be required by the State.
Monthly reports may be required at the discretion of the State.

All programs under this contract that are emergency shelters, transitional programs or
permanent programs are required to be licensed to provide client level data into the
New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System (NH HMIS). Programs
under this contract must be familiar with and follow NH HMIS policy, including specific
information that is required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and time required
for data entry. Current NH HMIS policy can be accessed electronically through the
following website: http://www.nh-hmis.org.

Failure to submit the above reports or enter data into HMIS in a timely fashion could
result in the delay or withholding of reimbursements until such reports are received or
data entries are confirmed by the State.

SERVICES:

The Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that during the term of this Agreement, it will
provide services in accordance with the description(s) cited below:

CAJDHHS/100213 Exhioit A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit A

3.1 Emergency Solutions Grant Program, 24 CFR part 576

3.2 Contractor shall use the US Dept of Housing and Urban Development Emergency
Solutions Grant funds for:

O Prevention/Intervention Services, such as rent with eviction notice, mortgage with
foreclosure notice, utilities with disconnect notice, and other activities to prevent
homelessness.

0 Essential Services, such as assistance in finding permanent housing,
employment counseling, substance abuse counseling, assistance in accessing
other community services, and staff salaries and benefits.

& Operations Activities, including shelter operational costs such as rent, utilities,
insurance, and supplies.

CA/DHHRS/100213 Exhibit A Contractor Initials _* ;E i
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit B

METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

Emergency Solutions Grant

The following financial conditions apply to the scope of services as detailed in Exhibit A —-
Emergency Solutions Grant

This contract is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made
available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA), as follows:

NH General Fund: Not applicable

Federal Funds:

CFDA #: 14.231

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development
Program Title: Emergency Solutions Grant

Total Amount Emergency Solutions Grant Program;

2014: not to exceed $33,248.00

Funds allocation under this agreement for Emergency Solutions Grant Program;
Operating expenses: $33,248.00

Total program amount: $33,248.00

1. Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory
completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement, the State agrees to fund
the Contractor for operations, supportive services, leasing and administration utilizing funds
provided through the U.S, Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
Emergency Solutions Grant Program, in an amount not to exceed and for the time period
specified above.

2. REPORTS.

As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the following:

2.1. Progress Reports: Semiannual and annual financial and statistical progress reports
which identify the status of the Services performed, the outiook for completion of the
remaining services prior to the Completion Date and the changes, if any, which need to
be made to the services, shall be submitted by the 15th of the month following the end
of each six month period on forms supplied by the State.

2.2. Audited Financial Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in
accordance with the regulations that implement OMB Circular A-133. Three (3) copies
of the audited financial report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days of the completion
of said report to the State.

2.3. Where the Contractor is not subject to the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, within
ninety (90) days after the Completion or Termination Date, one copy of an audited
financial report shall be submitted to the State. Said audit shall be conducted utilizing
the guidelines set forth in “Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Program
Activities, and Functions” by the Comptroller General of the United States.

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit B Contractor [nitials %j
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit B

3. PROJECT COSTS: PAYMENT SCHEDULE; REVIEW BY THE STATE.

3.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term “Project Costs” shall mean all
expenses directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the
Project Activities, as determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment in
accordance with Public Law 102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in
OMB Circular A-87 as revised from time to time and with the rules, regulations, and
guidelines established by the State. Nonprofit subcontractors shall meet the
requirements of OMB Circular A-122.

3.2. Payment of Project Costs: Subject to the general provisions of this Agreement and in
consideration of the satisfactory completion of the Services to be performed under this
Agreement, the State agrees to purchase from the Contractor, in the amount not to
exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8 of the General Provisions of this
Agreement. The State agrees to provide funds for homeless services in payments in
accordance with such other schedules as may be required by HUD under the provisions
of 24 CFR Part 576, Emergency Solutions Grants Program; HEARTH Act and all
applicable regulations.

3.3. The Contractor shall submit documentation of expenditures of Federal funds at the
conclusion of each bimonthly period or any other such schedule as may be required. In
no event shall the funds provided exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8 of
the General Provisions. Upon release of additional Federal funding to the State, the
Contractor may invoice for balance of contracted amount as specified in biock 1.8
based on documentation of expenditures.

3.4. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs: At any time during the performance of the
Services, and upon receipt of the semiannual reports, termination Report or Audited
Financial Report, the State may review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and
all payments made to date. Upon such review, the State shall disallow any items of
expense which are not determined to be allowable or are determined to be in excess of
actual expenditures, and shall, by written notice specifying the disallowed expenditures,
inform the Contractor of any such disallowance. If the State disallows costs for which
payment has not been made, it shall refuse to pay such costs. Any amounts awarded
to the Contractor pursuant to this Agreement are subject to recapture pursuant to 24
CFR Subsection 576.55.

4. USE OF GRANT FUNDS.

Conformance to 24 CFR Part 84: Grant funds are to be used only in accordance with
procedures, requirements and principles specified in 24 CFR Part 84.

5. CONTRACTOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM.

Line Item Transfers: Funds may not be transferred between programs nor may funds be
transferred between line items as appears on the budget page without the prior written
authorization from the State. Any expenditures which exceed the approved budgets shall be
solely the financial responsibility of the Contractor. However, such excess expenditures
may be covered by the transfer of other funds where such transfer is permissible by this
Agreement. In any event, the Contractor shall be required to continue providing the
Services specified in this Agreement. The Contractor shall make no adjustments so as to
incur additional expenses in State funded programs in subsequent years without prior
written authorization from the State.

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit B Contractor lniﬁalsﬁ
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Exhibit B
Emergency Solutions Grant
EXPENSE BUDGET for 2014:
Federal
EXPENSE ITEM HEARTH Funds Match
Operations $33,248.00 $33,248.00
Shelter operational costs such
as rent, utilities, insurance,
and supplies
TOTALS $33,248.00 | ~$33,248.00
TOTAL Federal+Match $66,496.00 FHEENE RIS
CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit B Contractor Initials %
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
fundors for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party fundors, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established,;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;
Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials ; ]S;Z
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Defauit hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect alt such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payroils, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held iiable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his

attorney or guardian.
Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials ﬁ_
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11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following

times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1.  The preparation of this {report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materiais {written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to

Exhibit C ~ Special Provisions Contractor Initials
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subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated

function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting

responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if

the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual

conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance

with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

16.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

16.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

16.3.  Monitor the subcontractor’s performance on an ongoing basis

16.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor’s performance will be reviewed

16.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL.: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials _%_
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is

replaced as follows:

4, CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or avaitability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 Inthe event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 Inthe event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

Exhibit C-1 — Revisions to Standard Provisions Contractor initials Egéi
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1988 regulations were amended and published as Part I} of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscai year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1.  Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controtled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3.  Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

1.3.  Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4.  Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5.  Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local heaith,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

02/11/2014 X — =
Date g7 Rietrard D. Allen

Assistant Secretary - Legal
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.8.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title Vi

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
moadification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-I.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name: The Salvation Army
e

02/11/2014
Date
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services’ (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

» oy Wouy

5. The terms “covered transaction,” "debarred,” "suspended,” “ineligible,” "lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligibte, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposatl (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: Th

02/11/2014
Date

Exhibit F — Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Contractor Initials
And Other Responsibility Matters
CUMHHSH 10713 Page 2 of 2 Date _02/11/2014



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING
THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts
to comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

Contractor Name: The Salvation Army

02/11/2014
Date

Title:

Assistant Secretary - Legal

Exhibit G — Certification Regarding Contractor Initials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, aiso known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
{Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's

representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following

certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name: The Salvation Army

02/11/2014
Date

Exhibit G — Certification Regarding Contractor Initials
Environmental Tobacco Smoke
CUIDHHS/110713 Page 1 of 1 Date __02/11/2014



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit |

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILTY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to comply with
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and with the Standards for
Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164 and those
parts of the HITECH Act applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business Associate” shall
mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that receive, use or have access to
protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered Entity" shall mean the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

Definitions

1. “Breach’ shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in Title XXX, Subtitle D. Sec. 13400,

2. "Business Assaciate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Tile 45, Code of Federal
Regulations.

3. “Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code of Federal
Regulations.

4. ‘“Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

5. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR Section
164.501.

6. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations” in 45
CFR Section 164.501,

7. "HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act,
TitieXIll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009.

8. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 104-191
and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR
Parts 160, 162 and 164.

9. “Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individuai” in 45 CFR Section 164,501 and
shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.501(g).

10. “Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of individuaily Identifiable Health Information at
45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States Department of Health
and Human Services.

11. "Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 164.501, limited to the information created or received by Business
Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

12. “Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR Section
164.501.

13. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or his/her
designee.

14. “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected Health
Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

15. “Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not secured by
a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable, unreasonable, or
indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by a standards developing
organization that is accredited by the American National Standards Institute.

16. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning established under
45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the HITECH Act.

Exhibit | — Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act Contractor [nitials
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Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information

1.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health Information (PHI)
except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under Exhibit A of the Agreement.
Further, the Business Associate shall not, and shall ensure that its directors, officers, employees and
agents, do not use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:

2.1. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;

2.2. Asrequired by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or

2.3. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a third party,
Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) reasonable assurances from
the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and used or further disclosed only as required
by law or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such
third party to notify Business Associate, in accordance with the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec.
13402 of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained knowledge of
such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to provide services
under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a request for disclosure on the
basis that it is required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an
opportunity to object to the disclosure and o seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such
disclosure, the Business Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has
exhausted all remedies.

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to be bound by
additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall be bound by such additional
restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of such additional restrictions and shall abide by
any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate

1.

Business Associate shall report to the designated Privacy Officer of Covered Entity, in writing, any
use or disclosure of PHI in violation of the Agreement, including any security incident involving
Covered Entity data, in accordance with the HITECH Act, Subtitie D, Part 1, Sec. 13402.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy and Security Rule as set forth in,
the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13401 and Sec.13404.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books and records
relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or received by the Business
Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for purposes of determining Covered Entity's
compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have access to PHI
under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same restrictions and conditions on the use
and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided
under Section (3)b and (3)k herein. The Covered Entity shall be considered a direct third party
beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate agreements with Contractor's intended business
associates, who will be receiving PHI pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and
indemnification from such business associates who shall be governed by standard provision #13 of
this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of protected health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity, Business Associate
shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all records, books, agreements,
policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes
of enabling Covered Entity to determine Business Associate’s compliance with the terms of the
Agreement.

Exhibit | ~ Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act Contractor initials ﬁ_
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6. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, Business Associate
shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the Covered Entity, or as directed by
Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

7. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an amendment of
PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set, the Business Associate
shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for amendment and incorporate any such
amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

8. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to such
disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an individual for an
accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

9. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a request for an
accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available to Covered Entity such
information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations to provide an accounting of
disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

10. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI directly from the
Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2) business days forward such request
to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the responsibility of responding to forwarded requests.
However, if forwarding the individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the
Business Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall
instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify Covered Entity of such
response as soon as practicable.

11. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the Business
Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate in connection with the Agreement, and shall not retain any copies
or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has
been otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the
protections of the Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business Associate maintains
such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the Business Associate destroy any or
all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

1. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s}) in its Notice of Privacy
Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the extent that such
change or limitation may affect Business Assaciate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

2. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of
permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or disclosed by
Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 164.506 or 45 CFR Section
164.508.

3. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or disclosure of
PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, to the extent that such
restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

Termination for Cause

In addition to standard provision #10 of this Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the
Agreement upon Covered Entity's knowiedge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business
Associate Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit |. The Covered Entity may either immediately terminate
the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the alleged breach within a
timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity determines that neither termination nor cure is
feasible, Covered Entity shall report the violation to the Secretary.

Exhibit | — Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act Contractor lnitialsﬁ
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Miscellaneous

1. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein, shall have
the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, and the HITECH Act as amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit {, to a Section in
the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as amended.

2. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is necessary to
amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered Entity to comply with the
changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule, and applicable federal and
state law.

3. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights with respect
to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

4. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved to permit
Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule and the HITECH Act.

5. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any person(s) or
circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or conditions which can be
given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the terms and conditions of this Exhibit |
are declared severable.

6. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or destruction of
PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section 3 k, the defense and indemnification
provisions of section 3 d and standard contract provision #13, shall survive the termination of the
Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit 1.

Contractor Name: tion Army

02/11/2014
Date

Name<Richard D-Affen
Title: Assistant Secretary - Legal

State Agency Name;
WHD77

d’//o///c// WWW»@%

Date / Name: (//Md—vu’ Ann Coo
Title: Coc A l— Crfue:jwdl!‘ 1~
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountabiiity and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and asscciated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following informaticn for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
Name of entity
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entity
Principle place of performance
Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
0. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if;.

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

SOXNOOLN =

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

02/11/2014
Date
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FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: 062517941

2. Inyour business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

X _NO YES
If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount:
Name: Amount;
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:

Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials ﬁ

Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance
CU/DHHS/110713 Page 2 of 2 Date 02/11/2014



State of Nefo Hampshire
HBepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that THE SALVATION ARMY, a(n) New York nonprofit corporation, registered
to do business in New Hampshire on July 19, 1954. 1 further certify that it is in good

standing as far as this office is concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the fees

required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREQF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 5™ day of June, A.D. 2013

oy Bk

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

1 Bernard W. Meitrott , do hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1.1 am a duly elected Officer of The Salvation Army
(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of two resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on __June 23. 2009
(Date)

RESOLVED: That the Assistant Secretary - Legal
(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the 18th day of __ February ,2014 .
{Date Contract Signed)

4. Richard D. Allen is the duly elected Assistant Secretary - Legal
(Name of Contract Sighatory) {Title of Contract Signatory)
of the Agency.

)i otk

(Signature of e Elected Officer)
Bernard W. Meitrott, Assistant Secretary - Finance

&

STATE OF NEW YORK
County of _ROCKLAND

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this | 1th _ day ofFebruary , 2014

By Bernard W. Meitrott, Assistant Secretary - Finance
(Name of Elected Officer of the Agency)

(Notary Pubhc/Justtce . of the Peace)
N G Tahnia Wilson

MOTARY SEAL)
Notary Public State of New York
No. 01W16213088
Commission Expires: _November 2, 2017 Qualified in Rockland County
Commission Expires November 2, 2017
NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations July 1, 2005

Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal
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ACORD
.__Sz/

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

OATE {(MWDD/YYYY)
02/10/2014

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUGER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS GERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE GERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLIGIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANGE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

IMPORTANT:

cortificate holder In llou of such endorgsement(s).

If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSUR_EF the policy(ies) must be endorsed.
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate doas not confer rights to the

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to

PRODUCER

ACT

CHESTERFIELD INSURANCE AGENCY, INC. PO 0 596 76395104 [ 2% nei:330-896-6548
PO BOX 237 MSUE HAMILTON@TPA4TSA
GREEN, OH 44232-0237 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE AK S
GREEN, OH 44232-0237 wsurer 4 : ZURICH AMERICAN INS. CO. 16535
INSURED INSURER B : . THE SALVATION ARMY RlSK TRUST

THE SALVATION ARMY, A NEW YORK CORP. | wsurer c: THE SALVATION ARMY, A NY CORP.

440 WEST NYACK ROAD msurer o : AMERICAN ZURICH INS. CO. 40142

WEST NYACK, NY 10994 INSURER & :

INSURERF ;

COVERAGES

CERTIFICATE NUMBER: LOC. # LOC#004 0004/LACONIA NH

REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED, NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

['hsR TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER | er iy LimYs
G | SENERAL LABILITY SELF INSURED 01/01/14 | 01/01/15 | eack osCURRENCE s §00,000
X | COMMERGIAL GENERAL LIABILITY RETENTION v CRENTED ey 1S 500,000
| cLamsmaoe [ X occur MED EXP (Any onepersan) | § 5,000
L PERSONAL 8 ADVINJURY | 5 500,000
!4 GENERAL AGGREGATE s 560,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | § 500,000
POLICY PRO: | X |ioc . S
A | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY BAP 8978527-18 01/01/14 | 01/01/15 | GOMBHEOSWGLELMT 1 100,000
X | ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per parson) | $
H ALLOWNED [ SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY (Per acciden) | $
(X e autos NON-OWNED [ PROPERTY DAMAGE :
s
B | | UMBRELLALWE | X | occurR TRUST #19578500 01/01/14 | 01/01/15 | EACH OGGURRENGE s 3,000,000
X | ExcEss LAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE s 3,000,000
DED | X] ReTENTION $ 500,000 s
D ;‘,?ggfgy:gfj;'gg;‘, s WC 8978533-18 01/01/14 | 01/0115 | X [ TGS ipms] B8
ANY PROPRIETORPARTNER/EXECUTIVE l:l NIA EL EACH AGCIDENT IE 1,000,000
}'l-;;d:mry” o E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE] $ 1,000,000
DESERIPTION OF OPERATIONS beiow E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | § 1,000,000
C |AUTO LIABILITY EXCESS ; SELF INSURED 01/01/14 | 01/01/15 |$400,000 XS OF $100,000
l RETENTION
L

DESCRIFTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEKICLES {Attach ACORD 181, Additional Remarks Schedule, f mors space Is requirsd)
FOR THE LACONIA NH CORPS CONTRACT FOR THE ESG AID PROGRAM.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

THE STATE OF NH, DHHS

BUREAU OF HOMELESS AND HOUSING SVCS.
ATTN: ERIC BORRIN

105 PLEASANT ST.

CONCORD, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE GANCELLED BEEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

s arallon

ACORD 25 {2010/05}

©1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and toao are reaistered marks of ACORD




()
DOING THE MOST GOOD"

The Salvation Army

Mission Statement

The Salvation Army, an international movement, is an evangelical
part of the universal Christian church. Its message is based on
the Bible. Its ministry is motivated by the love of God. Its
mission is to preach the gospel of Jesus Christ and to meet

human needs in His name without discrimination.



“Filed subject to attached Disclaimer”

| OMB No. 1545-0047

2011

. Open to Public’

Form 990 - Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax

Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code {except black lung
benefit trust or private foundation)

Department of the Treasury - .
Intemal Revenue Service » The organization may have to use a copy of this return to satisfy state reporiing requirements. Inspection
A For the 2011 calendar year, or tax year beginning October 1 , 2011, and ending September 30 ,20 12
B Checkif applicable: |C Name of organization The Salvation Army : D Employer identification number
(O Address change Doing Business As ' 13-5562351
D Name change Number and street {or P.O. box if mall s not defivered to street address) Room/suite E Telephone number
(3 initiat return 177 Union Avenue 603-524-1834
O Terminated City or town, state or country, and ZIP + 4
[J Amendedretum  |Laconia, New Hampshire 03246 G Gross receipts $ 143559.00
[] Appiication pending |F Name and address of principal officerr ~ Captains Stephen & Sally Warren Hia} Isthis a group retun for affilates? [_] Yes [¥] No
177 Union Avenue, Laconia, NH 03246 Hib) Are all affillates included? D Yes D No
1 Tax-oxempt status: 501(c)(3) O so1)¢ )< Ginsert no) [ aga7(@tyor L1527 If “No," attach a list. {see Instructions)
J Website: »  www.Laconia.SalvationArmyNH.org Hic) Group exemption number »
K Fomof organlzatlon: Corporation |:| Trust |:| Association |:| Other » J L Year of formation: 1899 | M State of legal domiciie: NY
Summary :
1  Briefly describe the organization’s mission or most significant activities: The Salvation Army’s mission is to preach the
® gospel of Jesus Christ and meet human needs in his name without discrimination
g
21 2 Check this box» (Tt the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets.
g 3  Number of voting members of the goveming body (Part VI, line 1a) . e e e 3
2| 4  Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part V1, line 1b) C e e . 4
Z] 5 Totalnumber of individuals employed in calendar year 2011 (Part V, line 2a) .. 5
8| 6 Total number of volunteers (estimate if necessary) . . e e e e e e e 6
< 7a Total unrelated business revenue from Part Viil, column (C) Ime 12 e e e e e e 7a
b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T,line34 . . . . . . . . . 7b
: . Prior Year Curvent Year
o| 8 Contributions and grants (Part Vlll, lineth). . . . . . . . . . . . 104313.00
£| 9 Program service revenue (Part Vill, line 2g) e e 2431900
2110 Investment income (Part VI, column (A), lines 3, 4, and 7d)
111 Otherrevenue (Part Vili, column (A), lines 5, 6d, 8¢, 9¢c, 10c, and 11e) . . . , 14927.00
12 Total revenue—add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part Viii, column (A), line 12) . 143559.00
13  Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines1-3) . . . . . 4800.00
14 Beneﬁts paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), line 4) . . .
9 15 Salanes other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines 5-1 0) 92541.00
2| 46a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line 11¢) . 3269.00
&| b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25) » L
uf 17  Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11a~11d, 11{-24¢) . $3409.00
18 Total expenses. Add lines 13—17 {(must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) . 154019.00
19 Revenue-less expenses. Subtract line 18 from line 12 e -10460.00
8§ Beginning of Current Year End of Year .
£3(20 Total assets (Part X, line 16) 15051.00
25( 21 Total iabilities (Part X, line 26) . 12281.00
23| 22  Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from llne 20 2770.00
Em Signature Block

Under penalties of perjury, | decfare that | have examined this retumn, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is
true, correct, and complete, Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.

Sign } Signature of officer Dats
Here }
Type or print pame and title
Paid Print/Type preparer’s name Preparer's signature Date Check D i PTIN
Preparer self-employed
Use Only |Fim'sname  » Firm's EIN »
Firm's address » Phone no.
May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (seeinstructions) . . . . . . . . . . . . [JYes[]INo
Cat. No. 11282Y Form 990 2011)

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions.



“Filed subject to attached Disclaimer”

Form 930 (2011)

Page 9

Contributions, Gifts, Grants
and Other Slmilar Amounts

el = B I -

T

Statement of Revenue

Federated campaigns . . . | 1a 28000.00

Membershipdues . . . . [ 1b
Fundraisingevents . . . . | 1¢c
Related organizations . . . [ 1d

Govemment grants (contributions) | 1e §7782.00

All other contributions, gifts, grants,

18531.00

and simllar amounts not included above | 1f
Noncash contributions included In lines 1a-1£:$ __ 4800.00
Total. Addlinesta-1f . . . . . . . . . »

Program Service Revenue

2a

Q=0 ao0oUC

Business-Code

(A)
Total revenue

104313.00

(B) ©)
Related or Unrelated
exempt business
function revenue
revenue

(D)
Revenue
excluded from tax

under
512, 513 or 514

All other program service revenue .
Total. Add lines 2a-2f . . . . . . >

24319.00

Other Revenue

8a

10a

(2]

" Gain or {loss) .

Investment income (including dwldends mterest,
and other similaramounts) . . . . . . . bv
Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds »
Royalties . . . . . . . . . . . . . »

________________ _ ____..m.Rea‘__,_, - ___m»m____

Gross rents

Less: rental expenses | -

Rental income or {loss)

Net rental income or (loss) .

> |

Gross amount from sales of () Securities i) Other

assets other than inventory

Less: cost or other basis
and sales expenses .

Netgainorfloss) . . . . . . . . . . »

Gross income from fundraising
evertts (ot including $

of contributions reported on line 1c).
SeoPartlV,line18 . . . . . ga
Less: directexpenses . . . . b
Net income or {loss) from fundraising events . »
Gross income from gaming activities.
SeePartlV,line19 . . . . . g3
Less: direct expenses . . . b
Net income or (loss) from gamlng activities . . »
Gross sales of inventory, less
retummsand allowances . . . g
Less:costofgoodssold . . . b
Net income or (loss) from sales of inventory . . »

Miscellaneous Revenue Business Code

11a

o a0 o

12

All other revenue

Total. Add lines 11a-11d .

vy

14927.00
143559.00

Total revenue. See instructions.

Form 990 (2011)



“Filed subject to attached Disclaimer”

Form 990 (2011)

[ X104 Statement of Functional Expenses

Page 10

Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A) but are not
required to complete columns (B), (C), and (D).

Check if Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part IX . .. |
Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b, 7b, (B) (c) (D)
8b, 9b, and 10b of Part VIII. Total expenses Program service Management and Fundraising
penses general expenses expenses
1 Grants and other assistance to govemments and
organizations in the United States. See Part IV, fine 21
2 Grants and other assistance to individuals in
the United States. See Parl IV, line 22 . 4800.00 4800.00
3 Grants and other assistance to governments,
organizations, and individuals outside the
United States. See Part IV, lines 15 and 16 .
4  Benefits paid to or for members
5 Compensation of current officers, dlrectors
trustees, and key employees 4368.00 3844.00 349.00 175.00
6  Compensation not included above, to dxsquallf jed
persons (as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and
persons described In sectlon 4958(c)(3)(B)
7  Other salaries and wages 62017.00 54575.00 4961.00 2481.00
8 | Pension plan accruals and contnbutlons (' nclude
section 401(k) and 403(b) employer conitributions) 2079.00 1830.00 166.00 83.00
9 Other employee benefits . 17170.00 15109.00 1374.00 687.00
10 Payroll taxes . 6907.00 6078.00 553.00 276.00
11  Fees for services (non-em ployees)
a Management . . . . . .
b Legal . . . . . . . . .
¢ Accounting ..
d Lobbying . .
e Professional fmdra:smg services. See Part IV ine 17 3269.00 3269.00
f Investment management fees . . .
g Other . . . . . . . . . .
12  Advertising and promotion . . .
13  Office expenses . 2538.00 2234.00 203.00 101.00
14  Information technology . e 2680.00 2359.00 214.00 107.00
15 Royalties . . . . . . . . . . . .
16 Occupancy v e e e e e 26150.00 23012.00 2092.00 1046.00
17 Travel . .
18  Payments of travel or entertalnment expenses
for any federal, state, or local public officials
19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings
20 Interest e e e .
21  Payments to affiliates . . . . 12383.00 10897.00 991.00 495.00
22  Depreciation, depletion, and amortlzatlon
23 Insurance . . . . .
24  Other expenses. ltemize expenses not covered
above. (List miscellaneous expenses in line 24e. If
line 24e amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column
(A) amount, fist line 24e expenses on Schedule O.) i
a Misc 9658.00 8499.00 773.00 386.00
b
c
d —
e All other expenses
25  Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e 154019.00 133237.00 11676.00 9106.00
26 _ Joint costs. Complete this line only if the

organization reported in column (B} joint costs
from a combined educational campaign and
fundraising solicitation. Check here » [] if
following SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720) . . . .

Form 980 (2011



Audit Report
Financial Statements
The Salvation Army

Carey House Laconia, NH
For The Year Ended
September 30, 2012



The Salvation Army
Carey House Laconia, NH Corps Community Center
Schedule of Income
For The Year Ended
September 30, 2012

INCOME

Contributions
Unrestricted Donations
Restricted Donations
Seasonal Appeals
Collections
Associated Organizations
Thrift Store Appropriation
United Way Allocation
Public Funds

Total Public Support

Other Revenue
Program Service Fees
War Cry Sales
Other Sales
Investment Income

Unrestricted
Restricted
Miscellaneous

Total Other Revenue

Total Public Support and Revenue

$8,571
6,300
3,660

28,000
57,782

SCHEDULE A.

$104,313

39,246

$143,559




The Salvation Army
Carey House Laconia, NH Corps Community Center
Schedule of Expenditures
For The Year Ended
September 30, 2012

EXPENDITURES

Salaries and Related Expenses
Staff Compensation
Fringe Benefits
Payroll Taxes .

Total Salaries- and Related Expenses

‘Supplies, Program and Services
Professional Fees .
Education, Recreation, Craft Supp.
Food Purchased
Uniforms
Office Supplies
Telephone
Postage, Shipping
Rent
Utilities
Property Upkeep & Repairs
Janitorial Supplies
Fumishings & Equipment
Printed Materials
War Cry Costs
Other Transportation & Meals
Vehicle Operating Costs
Vehicle Insurance
Vehicle Replacement
Special Meetings
Conferences
Financial Assistance Regular
Financial Assistance Seasonal/Disaster
Organization Membership Costs
Educational Grants
Miscellaneous

Total Supplies,Program and Services
Support Payments to Supervisory Headquarters

Total Expenses

$66,385
19,249
6,907

SCHEDULE B.

$92,541

49,095
12,383
$154,019



The Salvation Army

Carey House Laconia, NH Corps Community Center
Statement of Support, Revenue and Expense

And Change in Fund Balance
Corps Operating Account
For The Year Ended
September 30, 2012

INCOME

Public Support and Revenue
Public Support Received Directly

Contributions $18,531

Total Received Directly

Public Support Received Indirectly
Public Funds 57,782

United Way Allocation 28,000

Total Received Indirectly

Other Revenue

Program Service Fees 24,319
Sales to Public _ 0
Investment Income 0

Miscellaneous 14,927

Total Other Revenue

Total Public Support and Revenue

EXPENSE

Program and Supporting Services
Salaries and Related Expenses 92,541
Other Operating Expenses 49,095

Support Payment to

Supervisory Headquarters 12,383

Total Expenses

(Expenses in Excess of Public Support and Revenue)
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year
Fund Balance - End of Year

EXHIBIT A

$18,531

85,782

39,246

143,559

154,019

-10,460
13,230

' $2.770



The Salvation Army

Carey House Laconia, NH Corps Community Center

Combined Balance Sheet
For The Year Ended
September 30, 2012

Current Assets

Cash in Bank-Operating Account
Custodian Account
Petty Cash

Accounts Receijvable

Total Current Assets

Accounts Payable

Fund Balances
Operating Account

Custodian Fund

Band

Board Designated Interest
Older Ministries
Adventure Corps/Scouts
Boys Club

Girl Guards

Lord's Doliar

Memorials

Men's Fellowship
Sunbeams
Torchbearers/Teens
Women's Minstries

Future Officer's Fellowship
Youth Group

Total Custodian Fund
Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities & Fund Balances

ASSETS

$15,051

| exumms.

$15,051

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

$12,281

2,770

2,770

$15,051




Note 1.

Note 2.

Note 3.

The Salvation Army
Carey House Laconia, NH Corps Community Center
Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2012

EXHIBIT C.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.
This Corps Community Center is an operating segment of the Northern New England Division of

The Salvation Ammy, and as such does not record fixed assets or acquisitions on the balance
sheel. The accounting and recording of same is part of the Corporate Headquarters in New York.

FUNDED DEPRECIATION

Vehicles are depreciated over a four year period, with payments of same made to the Divisional
Headquarters and held in reserve until replacement. The vehicle replacement account represents

this depreciation only.

INVESTMENT INCOME

The restricted and unrestricted investment revenues reflected in Exhibit B of the Financial
Statements are derived from trust funds willed to The Salvation Army. The restricted revenues
are disbursed according to the provisions of the trust instrument and are controlled by Territorial
Headquarters in New York. The unrestricted revenues are also controlled by the Termitorial
Headquarters and are disbursed according to the need of certain programs sponsored by The

Salvation Army. .



EXHIBIT "A"
The Salvation Army
Carey House Laconia, NH Corps Community Center

Form 990
Return of Organization Exempt from Tax Form

"The Salvation Army in the United States is composed of a National Headquarters, four Territories,
each separately incorporated, and multiple local units within each Territory. As a church, The Salvation
Army is not required by the IRS to file the Form 990. However, to qualify to receive funding from
certain sources, some local units provide information to funding agencies by completing a Form 990

pro forma. Preparing such a pro forma does not constitute a voluntary filing for Form 990. As such,

- providing the pro forma does not waive The Salvation Army's exemption from the requirement to file
the Form 990 return. Therefore, for example, the pro forma return provided to the Combined Federal
Campaign contains the following statement on the first page: -

DISCLAIMER

The Salvation Army is not required to file IRS Formz 990. Therefore, this form is submitted under protest,
in compliance with the ruling of CFC opinion 88-1 which states:

"QOrganizations that are not required to file IRS Form 990 with the IRS must nonetheless submit a
completed copy of that form with their application for national or local eligibility."

Since the pro form Form 990 return is provided in the situations and for the purposes described above

by local units of The Salvation Army, it is an abbreviated version designed to provide relevant information
about the local unit's operations and use of resources. Therefore, only certain applicable parts of the core
form that identify the local unit have been completed. Finally, depending on the context, certain parts of
the core form containing information relating to either the territory, the local unit, or in some cases,

a combination of both."

As Stated in Accounting Minute 1SN
Guidelines for Local Preparation of IRS Form 990
Approved by Territorial Finance Council August 18,2011



NAME

William A. Roberts
Barry C. Swanson
William R. Carlson
James W. Reynolds
Glenn C. Bloomfield
Thomas O. Henson
Thomas A. Schenk
Richard D. Allen
Jorge E. Diaz
Bernard W. Meitrott
Mark W. Tillsley
Kenneth W. Maynor
Barbara A. Hunter-

As of 1February2013
(EXADPL)

THE SALVATION ARMY
a New York Corporation

Executive Address: 440 West Nyack Road

West Nyack, New York 10994-0635

Listing of Corporate Trustees and Officers

TTLE HOME ADDRESS

Chairman of the Board, Trustee
President, Trustee

Vice President, Trustee
Treasurer, Trustee

First Assistant Treasurer, Trustee m
T

Second Assistant Treasurer 3

Secretary, Trustee

Assistant Secretary - Legal =
TR
VSR

Assistant Secretary - Property

Assistant Secretary - Finance ]
Trustee . |
)

Trustee AR o
SRR 2 3

Trustee



Advisory Board Roster
Laconia, New Hampshire

Mr. Russell Beane Honorable Willard Martin Il

Mrs. Kathy Calvin Mrs. Nancy Morrill

Mrs. Sally Carver

Retired
Mr. Mark Dadian -

Lo__. Mr. Mike Persson

Mr. Rene Gilbert -

Mrs. Alison Whynot

NA~—— tiat LELE

cnrdista \I:II...._'_ Cm ot lf . 3ank

e~ T air

Potential Members:

Susan Borden-Lunt
Cc ’

Jim McDonald

Jeff Beane



Amanda Lewis

Work Experience

The Salvation Army (May 2008-November 2009)
Thrift Store Manager
o Prepared Daily bookkeeping sheets
Daily Bank Deposits
Oversaw all employees
Oversaw all volunteers
Tracking of Court Ordered Community Service hours
Accepting all donations and administering tax receipts
Scheduling donation pick-up routes
All trouble shooting

000000

The Salvation Army (November 2009-September 2012)
Office Manager
o Responsible for weekly financial packet
Bank Deposits
Client intake (Emergency Financial Assistance, Food Pantry, Vouchers)
Overseeing volunteers
Overseeing Kitchen Staff
Overseeing WEP interns
Assisting Youth Minister with Children’s programs
Transporting kids to and from Camp Sebago
Transportation of Clients
Payroll
o All trouble shooting
The Salvation Army Army (September 2012-present)
Shelter Director
o Oversee entire house
Enforce all house rules
Grant Writing
Financial reporting
Budgeting
Case Managemen
Conflictresolution
Management of staff and volunteers
Attend all required meetings and seminars

00000000 O0

Q0000000

Education

e  Plymouth State University- Plymouth, NH (BA Communications, Minor Business Administration)
o September 2000-May 2004
s Moultonborough Academy- Moultonborough, NH (HS Diploma)

Skills

¢ Microsoft Word/Excel
Excellent Written and Verbal Communication
e« Problem Solving



e Time Management
s  Professionalism

Extra-Curricular Activities

Director of “First Fruits Food Pantry” at 2" Baptist Church of Sanbornton, NH

Child Care provider at 2™ Baptist Church of Sanbornton, NH

Assist with Vacation Bible School at 2" Baptist Church of Sanbornton, NH and The Salvation Army
Moultonborough Central School PTA member

Room Mother/Chaperone for Son's class



DEBORAH H. BOBOLIA

HIGHLIGHTS OF QUALIFICATIONS

» Experienced in Social Services and Office Support

» Dedicated Elder Care Professional

« Equally effective working independently or in team-oriented positions.

» Able to motivate others through a patient/caring but firm/focused approach to goal achievement.

» Excellent communication skills developed through responding to difficult situations and people in crisis.

» Bachelor of Science Degree in Human Services, Special Education Assistant Certificate, HIPPA, MANDT-
De-escalation skills, and Social Role Valorization Training and Bus Driver's Certificate.

CAREER SUMMARY

2009

1998 to 2008

2003 to 2006

1984 to 1998

SEASONAL

Comfort Keepers-In Home Personal Elder Care
Personal Cara Assistant-Part Time
In home care, companionship, light housekeeping, cooking, and errand assistance.

MR. FIREPLACE, Service Center
Service Coordinator-Full and Part Time
Scheduling for Five Crews for a six-day week, data entry, and problem solving.

OPEN ARMS OUTREACH

Case Manager/Intake Assessor/Group Facilitator

The case manager in three housing complexes for previously homeless families. Assessed
each program applicant. Assisted residents with developing short and long-term life goals,
created daily living plans, organized and prioritized their life and supported their efforts to
become fully functioning members of the community. Initiated and managed a children’s
group and a women's group. Conducted regularly scheduled home visits in a muiti-town
area. Worked with business leaders and clients to help clients obtain employment.

LACONIA SCHOOL DISTRICT, Laconia, NH

Teacher Assistant - J. Oliva Huot Vocational Center --

Assisted students in the Learning Center and in Health Occupations classes with course
assignments and classroom activities. Conducted vocational assessments and prepared
written reports of special needs students. Organized daily activities for 3 and 4-year-old
children in school's day care. Worked with special needs students.

Special Education Teacher Assistant -- 1988 to 1994
Worked with special needs students ages 14 to 20, both group and individual settings,
reinforcing classroom lessons.

Tutor -- 1987 to 1988
Provided individualized instruction for special needs students within the school as well
as in home settings.

Substitute Teacher —- 1984 to 1987

Servéd as Counselor and Assistant Director of summer camp programs for ages 6 to
Served as a Dorm Supervisor at the DWi-Multiple Offender Program (Spring/Summer)



DEBORAH H. BOBOLIA Page Two

EDUCATIONAL BACKGROUND

2002 to 2004

1999 to 2002

1987 to 1990

SPRINGFIELD COLLEGE, Manchester, NH Campus
Bachelor of Science in Human Services Degree Program. Graduated with high honors.

NEW HAMPSHIRE TECHNICAL INSTITUTE, Concord, NH

Associates Degree in Human Services with concentration in drug and alcohol
counseling.

Graduated with high honors.

NOTRE DAME COLLEGE, Manchester, NH

Special Education Teaching Assistant Certificate. Studies completed include: Teaching
the Emotionally Disturbed Child, Laws that Govern Special Ed in NH, Teaching Reading
| and |l {elementary education) and Early Education Language Arts.

CHANDLER JUNIOR COLLEGE, Boston, MA
Associates Degree in General Studies

Frequently attend professlonal development in-service training seminars

INTERNSHIPS

2001 BOSCAWEN ACADEMY PROGRAM
Intern Alcohot and Drug Counselor / Case Manager
Led educational groups, completed assessment reports, conducted intake interviews, and
made recommendations for treatment.

2000 WINNISQUAM SCHOOL DISTRICT

Interned with Family School Coordinator (Grades K-12)

Made home visits creating a trusting environment, which allowed for more accurate
assessments for appropriate referrals to other local human service agencies. Identified
student and family needs. Attended human service networking and training meetings as
well as |EP meetings. Collaborated with parents of young children to develop parenting
skills and beneficial playtime activities.

COMMUNITY SERVICE

2000 to Present

2008

2009

UPSTREAM

Member of this coalition of local agencies, businesses, organizations and individuals
whose programs and philosophy promote primary prevention. Organization provides
impetus for the community to gather their resources, work together and create
collaborative programs that support the health and well-being of children and families
within the Lakes Region.

TAYLOR COMMUNITY
Volunteer supporting activities in the Medical Facility with residents challenged by
varying degrees of dementia and Alzheimers Disease

CAREY HOUSE HOMELESS SHELTER
Volunteer by creating and teaching a cooking and dinning class on Tuesday nights



BARRY C SWANSON
TERRITORIAL COMMANDER

%:“8\:: STEPHEN WARREN

) SALLY WARREN

ANDRE COX
GENERAL

JAMES LABOSSIERE
PATRICIA LABOSSIERE
DIVISIONAL COMMANDERS

N

X CORPS OFFICERS

THE SALVATION ARMY
EQUNDED BY WILLIAM AN : T
HEART TO GOD; HAND TO MAN
PO BOX 326
177 UNION AVENUE
LACONIA, NH 03246
TELEPHONE (603)524-1834

FAX (603) 524-8164
www.use.salvationarmy.arg/lacania

February 10, 2014

Key Administrative Personnel

Captains Stephen and Sally Warren have been appointed as the Corps Commanding Officers of
the Laconia, NH Salvation Army in July 2010. In their role as Commanding Officers, they are
responsible for all aspects of Salvation Army mission and service.

Captains Warren have been Salvation Army officers for seven years in New Hampshire. The
Warrens have live in New Hampshire for many years even prior to becoming Salvation Army
officers. Both, Stephen and Sally Warren graduated with honors from The Salvation Army
College for Officers in Suffern, New York and were ordained and commissioned to lifelong
service in The Salvation Army.



The Salvation Army
Carey House Homeless Shelter

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract
Stephen Warren Captain 20,000.00 0 0

Sally Warren

Captain 20,000.00 0 0




FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: Emergency Solutions Grant Program
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1  State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address
Department of Health and Human Services 129 Pleasant Street
Office of Human Services Concord, NH 03301
1.3  Contractor Name 1.4  Contractor Address
The Salvation Army 100 South Fruit Street
(McKenna House) Concord, NH 03301
1.5  Contractor Phone 1.6  Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8  Price Limitation
Number
(603) 228-3505 ﬂ'9042- 23010 7 927 December 31, 2014 $39,351.00
0359304434
1.9  Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
Eric D. Borrin (603) 271-9558
1.11 Contractor Signature "7 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
| 7 Thomas A. Schenk, Secretary
/ 74 7// %

1.13 Acknowledgement State of N.Y. , County of Rockland

02/18/2014
On , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated in block
1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

[Sealtjw,%é%ﬂw

1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace
Deborah L. Hansen, Notary Public, State of New York

No. 01HAS5048121, Qualified in Orange County, Commission Expires August 14, 2017

1.14 State Agency Signa 1. 15 Name az ltle of State Agency Signatory

OO{»’S‘:IL Ot Zve

1.16 Approz:ﬁl/b/ the N.H. Depért)ént of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicatler—

By: Director, On:

1.17  Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

By: /ZJWZ% Aj» o 3-3-1Y

1.18  Approval by the G?‘/ernor and Executive Council

By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State”), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampsbhire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date”).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination, The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (*Equal
Employment Opportunity™), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines’
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all

personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be

qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly

licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable

laws. :

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of ... .-
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,

and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to

perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this .
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concemning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

Page 2 of 4 W
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law, Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report”) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
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Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State, Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the .
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims, - -
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby .
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:
14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance againstall -~ ..
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.

14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall - 4
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use inthe ™ * -

State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of

Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s) -
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer L
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference, Each

Date:_02/18/2014




certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation™).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers® Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prlor
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit A

SCOPE OF SERVICES
Emergency Solutions Grant

1. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT

1.1 Notwithstanding any provisions of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the
State are contingent upon receipt of federal funds under the Emergency Services
Grant. The State has applied for the Emergency Services Grant and will continue to
perform due diligence in the application process. However, the State makes no
representation that it will receive the funds. In no event shall the State be liable for
costs incurred or payment of any services performed by the Contractor prior to the
State’s receipt of federal funds applied for in the Emergency Services Grant.

2. PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO ALL SERVICES:

2.1 Except as otherwise modified in paragraphs of EXHIBIT A, the Contractor agrees to - - -
comply with the program narrative, budget detail and narrative, and amendments ‘
thereto, for Services, operations, prevention, acquisition, or rehabilitation as approved
by the Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services, Office of Human Services,
Department of Health and Human Services, hereafter referred to as the State.

2.2 The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right, following consultation with the Contractor, to
modify service priorities and expenditure requirements for the funds provided under
this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

2.3 The Contractor shall pursue any and all appropriate public sources of funds that are
applicable to the funding of the Services, operations, prevention, acquisition, or
rehabilitation. Appropriate records shall be maintained by the Contractor to document
actual funds received or denials of funding from such public sources of funds.

2.4 The Contractor shall provide semiannual and annual report information data by service
modality describing the number of unduplicated cases served, units of services
rendered, and staff required to provide the service, as may be required by the State.
Monthly reports may be required at the discretion of the State.

2.5 All programs under this contract that are emergency shelters, transitional programs or .
permanent programs are required to be licensed to provide client level dataintothe . - .-
New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System (NH HMIS). Programs -~
under this contract must be familiar with and follow NH HMIS policy, including specific
information that is required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and time required
for data entry. Current NH HMIS policy can be accessed electronically through the
following website: http:/Mmww.nh-hmis.org.

2.6 Failure to submit the above reports or enter data into HMIS in a timely fashion could
result in the delay or withholding of reimbursements until such reports are received or -
data entries are confirmed by the State.

3. SERVICES:

The Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that during the term of this Agreement, it will
provide services in accordance with the description(s) cited below:

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit A Contractor Initials & S
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit A

3.1 Emergency Solutions Grant Program, 24 CFR part 576

3.2 Contractor shall use the US Dept of Housing and Urban Development Emergency
Solutions Grant funds for:

O Prevention/Intervention Services, such as rent with eviction notice, mortgage with
foreclosure notice, utilities with disconnect notice, and other activities to prevent
homelessness.

O Essential Services, such as assistance in finding permanent housing,
employment counseling, substance abuse counseling, assistance in accessing
other community services, and staff salaries and benefits.

B Operations Activities, including shelter operational costs such as rent, utilities,
insurance, and supplies.

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit A Contractor Iniﬁalsﬂ_
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit B

METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

Emergency Solutions Grant

The following financial conditions apply to the scope of services as detailed in Exhibit A —
Emergency Solutions Grant

This contract is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made
available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA), as follows:

NH General Fund: - Not applicable

Federal Funds:

CFDA #: 14.231

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development
Program Title: Emergency Solutions Grant

Total Amount Emergency Solutions Grant Program;

2014: not to exceed $39,351.00

Funds allocation under this agreement for Emergency Solutions Grant Program;
Operating expenses: $39,351.00

Total program amount: $39,351.00

1. Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory T
completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement, the State agrees to fund
the Contractor for operations, supportive services, leasing and administration utilizing funds
provided through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
Emergency Solutions Grant Program, in an amount not to exceed and for the time period
specified above.

2. REPORTS.

As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the following:

2.1. Progress Reports: Semiannual and annual financial and statistical progress reports
which identify the status of the Services performed, the outlook for completion of the
remaining services prior to the Completion Date and the changes, if any, which need to .
be made to the services, shall be submitted by the 15th of the month following the end
of each six month period on forms supplied by the State.

2.2. Audited Financial Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in
accordance with the regulations that implement OMB Circular A-133. Three (3) copies
of the audited financial report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days of the completion
of said report to the State.

2.3. Where the Contractor is not subject to the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, within
ninety (90) days after the Completion or Termination Date, one copy of an audited
financial report shall be submitted to the State. Said audit shall be conducted utilizing
the guidelines set forth in “Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Program
Activities, and Functions” by the Comptroller General of the United States.

CAIDHHS!100213 Exhibit B Contractor Initials Z U P

Page of3 e 021872014




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit B

3. PROJECT COSTS: PAYMENT SCHEDULE; REVIEW BY THE STATE.

3.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term “Project Costs” shall mean all
expenses directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the
Project Activities, as determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment in
accordance with Public Law 102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in
OMB Circular A-87 as revised from time to time and with the rules, regulations, and
guidelines established by the State. Nonprofit subcontractors shall meet the
requirements of OMB Circular A-122.

3.2. Payment of Project Costs: Subject to the general provisions of this Agreement and in
consideration of the satisfactory completion of the Services to be performed under this
Agreement, the State agrees to purchase from the Contractor, in the amount not to
exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8 of the General Provisions of this
Agreement. The State agrees to provide funds for homeless services in payments in
accordance with such other schedules as may be required by HUD under the provisions
of 24 CFR Part 576, Emergency Solutions Grants Program; HEARTH Act and all
applicable regulations.

3.3. The Contractor shall submit documentation of expenditures of Federal funds at the
conclusion of each bimonthly period or any other such schedule as may be required. In
no event shall the funds provided exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8 of
the General Provisions. Upon release of additional Federal funding to the State, the
Contractor may invoice for balance of contracted amount as specified in block 1.8
based on documentation of expenditures.

3.4. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs: At any time during the performance of the
Services, and upon receipt of the semiannual reports, termination Report or Audited
Financial Report, the State may review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and
all payments made to date. Upon such review, the State shall disallow any items of
expense which are not determined to be allowable or are determined to be in excess of
actual expenditures, and shall, by written notice specifying the disallowed expenditures,
inform the Contractor of any such disaliowance. If the State disallows costs for which
payment has not been made, it shall refuse to pay such costs. Any amounts awarded
to the Contractor pursuant to this Agreement are subject to recapture pursuant to 24
CFR Subsection 576.55.

4, USE OF GRANT FUNDS.

Conformance to 24 CFR Part 84: Grant funds are to be used only in accordance with
procedures, requirements and principles specified in 24 CFR Part 84.

5. CONTRACTOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM.

Line ltem Transfers: Funds may not be transferred between programs nor may funds be
transferred between line items as appears on the budget page without the prior written
authorization from the State. Any expenditures which exceed the approved budgets shall be
solely the financial responsibility of the Contractor. However, such excess expenditures
may be covered by the transfer of other funds where such transfer is permissible by this
Agreement. In any event, the Contractor shall be required to continue providing the
Services specified in this Agreement. The Contractor shall make no adjustments so as to
incur additional expenses in State funded programs in subsequent years without prior
written authorization from the State.

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhiblt 8 Contractor Initials
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Exhibit B
Emergency Solutions Grant
EXPENSE BUDGET for 2014:
Federal '
EXPENSE ITEM HEARTH Funds Match
Operations $39,351.00 $39,351.00
Shelter operational costs such
as rent, utilities, insurance,
and supplies
TOTALS $39,351.00 $39,351.00
TOTAL Federal+Match $78,702.00
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1.

CU/DHHS/110713 Page 1 of 4 Date 02/18/2Q14 . .

Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

Documentation: in addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require. .

Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalif of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing .
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate

which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
fundors for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used

payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment

in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals . .-
or other third party fundors, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;

7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;
Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials 2
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor

covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records sl
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain e
payment for such services. T

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations” and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, .
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts. ,

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, itis -
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not ‘
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of =~ " -7~
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to S
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his

attorney or guardian. -
Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials %

CU/DHHS/10713 Page 2 of 4 Date _02/18/2014




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1.  The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and reguiations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

16. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain heaith care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
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subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor’s ability to perform the delegated

function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting

responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if

the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual

conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance

with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

16.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

16.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

16.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

16.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

16.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is

replaced as follows:

4, CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. in
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification. - .. - . .~
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the

following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of _
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercisingits . v-ou
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Pian for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a); :

1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5.  Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name: The Salvation Army

”//
02/18/2014 ’/ /M ////

Date Name; ThomasA Schenk
Title:

Secretary
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.8.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title V-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX -

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. |f any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for "
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-I.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name: The Salvation Army

77 %
s
Date Name: Thomas A. Schenk
Title:

Secretary
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION _
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary PR
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participationin =~ . =~
this transaction. e

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
"voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitied “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and

Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: The Salvation Army

02/18/2014 ////7 }’////W

Date Name: Thonias A. Schenk
Title: Secretary
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING
THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s

representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts
to comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

Contractor Name: The Salvation Army

' 7 )
02/18/2014 /////%/,VW

Date Name: Thomas A. Schenk
Title:

Secretary
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994. .

Contractor Name: The Salvation Army

02/18/2014 v//////// y // a

Date Name: Thomas A. Schenk
Title:

Secretary
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILTY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to comply with
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and with the Standards for
Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164 and those
parts of the HITECH Act applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business Associate” shall
mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that receive, use or have access to
protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered Entity” shall mean the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

Definitions

1. “Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in Title XXX, Subtitle D. Sec. 13400.

2. "Business Associate® has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Tile 45, Code of Federal
Regulations.

3. “Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code of Federal
Regulations.

4. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set” in 45 CFR__ ) 1'-'2,

Section 164.501.

5. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR Section
164.501.

6. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations” in 45
CFR Section 164.501.

7. "HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act,
TitleXIll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009.

8. "HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 104-191 -
and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR
Parts 160, 162 and 164.

9. “Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term mdlwdual" in 45 CFR Section 164.501 and
shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.501(g).

10. "Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information at
45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States Department of Health
and Human Services.

11. "Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 164.501, limited to the information created or received by Business
Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

12. “Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR Section
164.501.

13. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or his/her
designee.

14. “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected Health
Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

15. “Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not secured by
a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable, unreasonable, or
indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by a standards developing
organization that is accredited by the American National Standards Institute.

16. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning established under
45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the HITECH Act.

Exhibit | — Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act ~ Contractor Initials Q// e
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Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information

1.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health Information (PHI)
except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under Exhibit A of the Agreement.
Further, the Business Associate shall not, and shall ensure that its directors, officers, employees and
agents, do not use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:

2.1. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;

2.2. Asrequired by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or

2.3. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a third party,
Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) reasonable assurances from
the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and used or further disclosed only as required
by law or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such
third party to notify Business Associate, in accordance with the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec.
13402 of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained knowledge of
such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to provide services
under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a request for disclosure on the
basis that it is required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an
opportunity to object to the disclosure and to seek appropriate relief. if Covered Entity objects to such
disclosure, the Business Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has
exhausted all remedies.

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to be bound by
additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall be bound by such additional
restrictions and shail not disclose PHI in violation of such additional restrictions and shall abide by
any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate

1.

Business Associate shall report to the designated Privacy Officer of Covered Entity, in writing, any
use or disclosure of PHI in violation of the Agreement, including any security incident involving
Covered Entity data, in accordance with the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13402.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy and Security Rule as set forthin, - ;.- L

the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13401 and Sec.13404.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books and records
relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or received by the Business
Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for purposes of determining Covered Entity's
compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have access to PHI
under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same restrictions and conditions on the use
and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided .
under Section (3)b and (3)k herein. The Covered Entity shall be considered a direct third party
beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate agreements with Contractor's intended business
associates, who will be receiving PHI pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and
indemnification from such business associates who shall be governed by standard provision #13 of
this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of protected health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity, Business Associate
shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all records, books, agreements,
policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes
of enabling Covered Entity to determine Business Associate’s compliance with the terms of the
Agreement.

Exhibit | — Health insurance Portability and Accountability Act Contractor Initials %
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6. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, Business Associate
shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the Covered Entity, or as directed by
Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

7. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an amendment of
PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set, the Business Associate
shall make such PH! available to Covered Entity for amendment and incorporate any such
amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

8. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to such
disclosures as would be required for Covered Enitity to respond to a request by an individual for an
accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

9. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a request for an
accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available to Covered Entity such
information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations to provide an accounting of
disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

10. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI directly from the
Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2) business days forward such request
to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the responsibility of responding to forwarded requests.
However, if forwarding the individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the
Business Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall
instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify Covered Entity of such
response as soon as practicable.

11. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the Business
Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate in connection with the Agreement, and shall not retain any copies
or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has
been otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the
protections of the Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business Associate maintains
such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the Business Associate destroy any or
all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

1. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its Notice of Privacy
Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the extent that such
change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

2. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of
permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or disclosed by
Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 164.506 or 45 CFR Section
164.508.

3. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or disclosure of
PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, to the extent that such
restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

Termination for Cause

In addition to standard provision #10 of this Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the
Agreement upon Covered Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business
Associate Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately terminate
the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the alleged breach within a
timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity determines that neither termination nor cure is
feasible, Covered Entity shall report the violation to the Secretary.

Exhibit | — Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act Contractor Initials %
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Miscellaneous

1. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein, shall have
the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, and the HITECH Act as amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit |, to a Section in
the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as amended.

2. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is necessary to
amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered Entity to comply with the
changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule, and applicable federal and
state law.

3. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights with respect
to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

4. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved to permit
Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule and the HITECH Act.

5. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any person(s) or
circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or conditions which can be
given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the terms and conditions of this Exhibit |
are declared severable.

6. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or destruction of
PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section 3 k, the defense and indemnification
provisions of section 3 d and standard contract provision #13, shall survive the termination of the
Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Contractor Name: The Salvation Army

02/18/2014 %/ﬁ/////%

Date Name: Thdémas A. Schenk '
Title:

Secretary
State Agency Name:

N DS

Date 5 ; ;

SV

/
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and assoclated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1. Name of entity
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entity
Principle place of performance
Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)

0. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:
10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

20N EWON

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,. .- .
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees "
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH

Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name: The Salvation Army

; 7
02/18/2014 %///////7 /

Date Name: THotas A. Schenk'
Title:

Secretary
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FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: __ 062517941

2. Inyourbusiness or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

X NO YES
If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials é%
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State of Nefv Hampshive
Bepartment of Btate

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that THE SALVATION ARMY, a(n) New York nonprofit corporation, registered
to do business in New Hampshire on July 19, 1954, I further certify that it is in good
standing as far as this office is concerned, haviﬁg filed the return(s) and paid the fees

required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 5™ day of June, A.D. 2013

ey Bl

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

1, Glenn C. Bloomfield , do hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of The Salvation Army
(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of two resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on _June 23, 2009
(Date)

RESOLVED: That the Secretary
(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the _18th day of February ,2014.
(Date Contract Signed)

4. Thomas A. Schenk is the duly elected Secretary

(Name of Contract Signatory) 1 (Title of Contract Sigffatory)

i L O |

of the Agency.

" (Signature of the Elected Officer)
Glenn C. Bloomfield

First Assistant Treasurer, Trustee

STATE OF NEW YORK
County of _ROCKLAND

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this_18th  day of _February, 2014

By Glenn C. Bloomfield, First Assistant Treasurer, Trustee

(Name of Elected Officer of the Agency)

((Motary Public/Justice of the Peace)
Deborah L. Hansen
Notary Public, State of New York
No. 01HA5048121
Commission Expires: _August 14,2017 Qualified in Orange County
Commission Expires August 14, 2017

(NOTARY SEAL)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal

July 1, 2005




ACORD'

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MMWDO/YYYY)
03/07/2014

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the poticy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certaln policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

certificate holder In lisu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER m
CHESTERFIELD INSURANGE AGENCY, INC. PHONE _ 330-896-7639X5104 (52X er:330-896-6548
PO BOX 237 .SUE.HAMILTON@TPA4TSA .
GREEN, OH 44232-0237 INSURER{S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC &
GREEN, OH 44232-0237 msurer a: ZURICH AMERICAN INS. CO. 16535
INSURED msurer 8: THE SALVATION ARMY RISK TRUST
THE SALVATION ARMY, A NEW YORK CORP. msurer ¢ : THE SALVATION ARMY, A NY CORP.
440 WEST NYACK ROAD msurer o : AMERICAN ZURICH INS. CO. 40142
WEST NYACK, NY 10994 INSURER € :
INSURER F
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: LOC. # 004 006/CONCORD NH REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POUICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WATH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

R TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER Oy | sICY BAF LTS
C | GEMERAL LABILITY SELF INSURED 01/01/14 | 01/01/15 | eAcH OCCURRENCE 3 500,000
| X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY RETENTION A ey |8 500,000
] CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR ) MED EXP (Any ons person) | § 5,000
] : PERSONAL 8 ADVINJURY | § 500,000
- GENERAL AGGREGATE ) 500,000
GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | $ 500,000
POLICY B X |roc : 3
A | AuTomoBILE LIABILITY BAP 8978527-18 01/01/14 | 01/01/15 | GOMBIN LELMT [ 100,000
E ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per parson) | $
|| ALQuneED | | SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY (Per scciden) | $
[X ]| wrenauros | X | YoN-owneo PROPERTY DAMAGE s
s
B | | UMBRELLALAB | X | occUR TRUST #19578500 01/01/14 | 01/01/15 | EACH OCCURRENCE s 3,000,000
X | EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE s 3,000,000
DED [ X | retenmion $500,000 3
D | WORKERS COMPENSATION WC 8978533-18 01/01/14 | 01/01115 | X [{8&7iMiNs] (FX
ANY PROPRIETORPPARTNEREXECUTIVE [ £L. EACH ACCIDENT s 1,000,000
OFFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED? NIA
(Mandatory in NH) | E.L, DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| § 1,000,000
f yes, dascribe under
DESCRIFTION OF OPERATIONS beiow E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | § 1,000,000
C |AUTO LIABILITY EXCESS SELF INSURED 01/01/14 | 01/01/15 ($400,000 XS OF $100,000
RETENTION

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VENICLES (Atiach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if mors space is required)
CERTIFICATE ISSUED FOR CONCORD, NH MCKENNA SHELTER ESG GRANT.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER
o—

CANCELLATION

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant St.
Concord, NH 03301-3852

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTMICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANGCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS,

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

vaan U arallin

ACORD 25 (2010/05)

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. Al rights reserved.

The ACORD name and foao are reaistered marks of ACORD




Mission Statement

The Salvation Army: _ _

The Salvation Army an international movement is an evangelical part of
the universal Chrisdan Church. Its message is based on the Bible. Its
ministry is motivated by the love of God. Its mission is to preach the
gospel of Jesus Christ and to meet human needs in His name with out

discrimination.

The McKenna House:

The McKenna House strives to provide a comprehensive program of
services designed to help its residents find affordable, permanent housing.
Comprehensive case management services help remdents learn skills

necessary to live independently.

7he Salvation Army takes pﬂde In meeting human needs with out
discrimination of sex, race, color, religion or sexuval preference.
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Form 990 (2011)

and Other Simllar Amounts

Page 9

1a

bl I - Ny N - o

=~ ]

Statement of Revenue

Federatedcampalgns . . . | 1a

(A}
Total revenue

Membershipdues . . . . | 1b

Fundraisingevents . . . . | 1¢

Related organizations . . . | 1d

Govemnment grants (contributions) | 1e 95491.00

All other contributions, gifts, grants,

91512.00

and similar amounts not included above 1‘f
65787.00

Noncash contributions Included in lines 1a-1:$ __ 65787.00
Total Addlinesfa-1f . . . . . . . . .-»

Program Service Revenue Contributions, Gitts, Grants

tn-*cbn.nuh’

Business Cods

(C)
Unrelated
business
revenue

Hela(lBa)d or
exempt
function
revenue

187003.00

(D)

Revenue

excluded from tax
under sections
612,513, or 514

All other program service revenue .

Total. Add lines2a—2f . . . P

21550.00

Other Revenue

(LI 3

BIO.O U‘g’

oo

-
oo

. Gross income from fundraising

Investment income (including leldends. interest,
and other similaramounts) .. . . . . >
Income from investment of tax-exempt bond pr0ceeds>
Royalties . . . . . . . . . >

(I)Real @Pefsonal_'

Gross rents

Less:rentalexpenses | .. . __ ]

Rental income or (loss)

Netrentalincomeorfloss) . . . . . : . »

Gross amount from sales of () Securities () Other

assets other than nventory

Less: cost or other basis
and sales expenses .

Galn or (loss) .

NetgainorQoss) . . . . . . . . . . »

events (not including $

of contributions reported on line 1¢).
SecPartlV,line18 . . . . . ga
Less:directexpenses . . . . b
Net income or (loss) from fundraisingevents . »
Gross income from gaming activities.
SeePartlV,ine19 . . . . . g

less:directexpenses . . . . b
Net income or (foss) from gaming actrvmes N
Gross sales of inventory, less

retumsandallowances . . . ga
Less:costofgoodssold . . . b
Net income or (loss) from sales of inventory . . »

Miscellaneous Revenue Business Code

11a

o ao

12

All other revenue

Total. Add lines 11a-11d .
Total revenue. See instructions.

Yy

208553.00

Form 990 011)
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Form 990 (2011)

4309 Statement of Functional Expenses

Page 10

Section 501(c)@3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A) but are not
required to complete columns (B), (C), and (D).

Check if Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part IX . . . O
Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b, 7h, Total e(;\)pe nses Prog ral("l-’r)s arvice Mana ©) (D)
8b, 9b, and 10b of Part VIll. penses gmmtm 1 f;lxndmsm
1  Grants and other assistance to govemments and
organizations in the United States. See Part IV, {ine 21
2 Grants and other assistance to individuals in
the United States. See Part IV, line 22 . 68805.00 68805.00
3 Grants and other assistance to govemments,
organizations, and individuals outside the
United States, See Part IV, fines 15and 16 .
4 Beneﬁts paid to or for members
5 Compensatlon of cumrent officers, dlrectors,
trustees, and key employees 16809.00 14792.00 1345.00 672.00
6 Compensation not included above, to di squahr ied
persons (as defined under section 4958(f){1)) and
persons described in section 4958(c)(3YB)
7 Other salaries and wages . 104004.00 91524.00 8320.00 4160.00
8 Pension pIan accruals and contnbuhons (include ) i
section 401(%) and 403(b) employer contributions) 3258.00 2867.00 261.00 130.00
9 Other employee benefits . .. 8922.00 7851.00 714.00 357.00
10 Payrolitaxes . . . .. 11224.00 9877.00 898.00 449.00
11  Fees for services (non-employees)
-a Management e e e e e e
b P .'..‘. e e e e e .
e Aq&ourrling e e e e e -
d LoBﬁyIng e . B -
e Professional fundra:smg services. See Part IV ﬁne 17 5132.00 5132.00
't lnvostment management fees .. B
"“"g’ "etha‘ - - 0] T " PR R e i - - et B
12 Advertlslng and promotlon e e e e .
13 Office expenses e e e e e e e 8199.00 7216.00 655.00 328.00
14 Information tectinology . '2377.00 2092.00 190.00 95.00
15 Royalties . . . . . | )
16 Occupancy . . . . . 18315.00 " 16117.00 1465.00| 733.00
17 Travel . . . 1205.00 1061.00( . 96.00 48.00
18 Payments of travel or entertamment expenses
for any federal, state, or local public officials
19  Conferences, conventions, and meetings
20 Interest . . . .
21 Payments to afﬁllates e e e 14276.00 12563.00 1142.00 571.00
22 Depreciation,. depletion, and amorhzatlon
23 Insurance. . . . . . ..
24  Other expenses. Itemize expenses not covered
above. (List miscellaneous expenses in line 24e. If
line 24e amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column
(A) amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule 0.)
a Uniforms 71.00 62.00 6.00 3.00
b Memsp 233.00 205.00 . 19.00 3.00
¢ Vehicle 1865.00 1641.00 149.00 75.00
d Misc 3938.00 3465.00 315.00 158.00
e All other expenses
25 Tota functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e 268633.00 240138.00 15575.00 12920.00
26 Joint costs. Complete this fine only if the

- fundraisin

organization reported in column (B) joint costs
from- a combined educational campaign and

solicitation. Check here » [J if
following SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720) . . . .

Form 990 (2011)



“Filed subject to attached Disclaimer”

[ OMB No. 1545-0047

2011

Form 990 Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax

Under section 501(c}), 527, or 4947{a)(1) of the Intemal Revenue Code {except black lung

benefit trust or private foundation i
Do ¢ of the T o P ) Opento P'ubhc
mmpz ,'Riam,e Service ’ ) > The organization may have to use a copy of this retum to satisfy state reporting requirements. lnspectlon
A For the 2011 calendar year, or tax year beginning October 1 , 2011, and ending September 30 ,20 12
D Empioyer identification number

B Check if applicable: |C Name of organization The Salvation Army
. [ address change Dding Business As 13-5562351
O name change Number and street (or P.O. box if mail is not delivered to street address) Room/suite E Telephone number
603-225-5586

[ inttiat retum - 58 Clinton Street .
[ terminated City or town, state or country, and ZIP + 4 i
[J Amendedretum |Concord, New Hampshire 03301 G Gross recelpts § 208553.00
[ Application pending | F Name and address of principal officer:  Majors Jerry & Susan Stinson H(a) s this a group retum for affliates? [_] Yes [¥] No
58 Clinton Street, NH 03301 H(b) Are all affiliates included? [ Yes [ No
I__Tax-exempt status: sorey)  [lsorg( )4 Gasertnoy [ aoariamor [ s27 W "No," attach a st (see Instructions)
J Website: » www.Concord.SalvationArmyNH.org H(c) Group exemption number »
K Form of organization:[¥] Corporation [ ] Trust [] Assoclation [] Other » [ L Yearof formation: 1899 | M State of legai domicile:  NY
Summary
1  Briefly describe the organization’s mission or most significant activities: The Salvation Army's mission is to preach the
® _gospel of Jesus Christ and meet human needs in his name without discrimination.
Q .
% 2  Check this box »[]If the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets.
g 3 Number of voting members of the goveming body (Part V1, line 1a) . .. 3
2| 4 Numberof Independent voting members of the govemning body (Part V1, line 1b) .o 4
£( 5 Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2011 (Part V, line 2a) 5
E 6 Total number of volunteers (estimateifnecessary) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6
| 7a: Total unrelated business revenue from Part VI, column (C), linet2 . . . . .-. . . [7a
‘b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, fine834 .- . . . . . . . . 7b
. ) . - R Prior Year Current Year
o| 8 Contributions and.grants (Part Vill, ine 1h) . .~ . . . . . . 187003.00
2| 9 Program servicerevenue (Part Vill, ine2g) . . . . . . . . . . 21550.00
-3 |10  Investment income (Part-Vil-column (A), lines 3,4,and7d) . . . . .
© 141  Otherrevenue (Part Vill, column (4), lines 5, 6d, 8¢, 9¢, 10c, and 11e) . . ,
12 Total revenue—add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part Vill, column (A), line 12) 208553.00
13  Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines 1-3) . . . . 68805.00
14  Benefits paid to or for members (Part X, column (A), lined) . . . . .
2 15  Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines 5—1 0) 144217.00
@ | 16a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line 11e) . . .. 5132.00
&| b Totalfundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line28) »
w117  Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11a-11d, 11/-24¢) . . . . . . 50479.00
18 Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part [X, column (A), line 25) 268633.00
19 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 from linet2 . . . . . -60080.00
= g . Beginning of Current Year End of Year
§§ 20 Totalassets (PartX,line16) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19943.00
Iyl 21 Total liabilities (Part X, line26) . . . . . . . e e .. 1761.00
23| 22 Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from line 20 . 18182.00

m Signature Block

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that 1 have examined this retum, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, It is
true, correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.

Sign } Signature of officer Date
Here
Type or print name and title
Paid Print/Type preparer’s name Preparer's signature Date Check D i PTIN
Preparer ' seli-employed
Use Only [ frm'sname  » Firm's EIN_»
Firm's address » Phone no.
May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (seeinstructions) . . . . . . . . . . . . [Jves[JNo
Cat. No. 11282Y Form 990 o11)

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions.



Audit Report
Financial Statements
The Salvation Army

McKenna House Concord
For The Year Ended
September 30, 2012



_ The Salvation Army

McKenna House Concord Corps Community Center
Schedule of Income
For The Year Ended
September 30, 2012

INCOME

Contributions
Unrestricted Donations
Restricted Donations
Seasonal Appeals
Collections

- Associated Organizations
Thrift Store Appropriation
United Way Allocation
Public Funds

Total Public Support

Other Revenue
Program Service Fees
War Cry Sales
Other Sales
Investment Income

Unrestricted
Restricted
Miscellaneous

Total Other Revenue

Total Public Support and Revenue

$18,010
68,337
5,165

SCHEDULE A.

$187,003

21,550

$208,553




The Salvation Army
McKenna House Concord Corps Community Center
Schedule of Expenditures
For The Year Ended
September 30, 2012

SCHEDULE B.

EXPENDITURES
Salaries and Related Expenses
Staff Compensation $120,813
Fringe Benefits : 12,180
Payroll Taxes 11,224
" Total Salaries and Related Expenses $144.217
Supplies, Program and Services
"~ Professional Fees 5,132
Education, Recreation, Craft Supp. 139
Food Purchased 5,132
Uniforms 71
Office Supplies ' . 2,735
Telephone . 2,377
Postage, Shipping 76
Rent ) 0
Utilities 7,205
Property Upkeep & Repairs _ 6,735
Janitorial Supplies _ , 4,375
Furnishings & Equipment ' 3,623
Printed Materials : . 117
War Cry Costs 0
_ Other Transportation & Meals 1,205
Vehicle Operating Costs 364
Vehicle Insurance - 1,501
Vehicle Replacement _ : 0
Special Meetings 0
Conferences 0
Financial Assistance Regular 49,961
Financial Assistance Seasonal/Disaster 18,844
Organization Membership Costs 233
Educational Grants A 0
Miscellaneous ' 315
Total Supplies,Program and Services ' 110,140
Support Payments to Supervisory Headquarters 14,276

Total Expenses $268,633



The Salvation Army
McKenna House Concord Corps Community Center
Statement of Support, Revenue and Expense
' And Change in Fund Balance
Corps Operating Account
For The Year Ended
September 30, 2012

EXHIBITA -

INCOME

Public Support and Revenue
Public Support Received Directly

" Contributions . $91,512
Total Received Directly . $91,512
Public Support Received Indirectly :
Public Funds : 95,491
United Way Allocation 0
Total Received Indirectly 95,491
Other Revenue
Program Service Fees . 21,550
SalestoPublic .. . . - ... _ - o - - _  _
Investment Income 0
~ Miscellaneous _ _ 0
Total Other Revenue 21,550
Total Public Support and Revenue ' 208,553
EXPENSE
Program and Supporting Services .
Salaries and Related Expenses 144,217
Other Operating Expenses 110,140
Support Payment to
Supervisory Headquarters 14,276
Total Expenses ' 268,633
(Expenses in Excess of Public Support and Revenue) -60,080
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 78,262

Fund Balance - End of Year $18,182



The Salvation Army ,
McKenna House Concord Corps Community Center
Combined Balance Sheet
For The Year Ended
September 30; 2012

EXHIBIT B.
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash in Bank-Operating Account - $19,843
Custodian Account
Petty Cash | , 100
Accounts Receivable |
Total Current Assets, : ) . $19,943

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities
Accounts Payable ‘ . $1,761
Fund Balances
Operating Account 18,182
Custodian Fund
Band 0.00
Board Designated Interest
Older Ministries ' 0.00
Adventure Corps/Scouts 0.00
Boys Club .
Girl Guards 0.00
Lord’s Dollar 0.00
Memorials :
Men's Fellowship ‘0.00
Sunbeams ' 0.00
Torchbearers/Teens 0.00
Women's Minstries A 0.00

Future Officer's Fellowship
Youth Group

Total Custodian Fund 0
‘Total Fund Balances

18,182

Total Liabilities & Fund Balances $19,943




Note 1.

Note 2.

Note 3.

The Salvation Army
McKenna House Concord Corps Community Center
Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2012

EXHIBIT C.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.

" This Corps Community Center is an operating segment of the Northem New England Division of

The Salvation Army, and as such does not record fixed assets or acquisitions on the balance
sheet. The accounting and recording of same is part of the Corporate Headquarters in New York.

FUNDED DEPRECIATION

Vebhicles are depreciated over a four year period, with payments of same made to the Divisional
Headquarters and held in reserve until replacement. The vehicle replacement account represents

this depreciation only.

INVESTMENT INCOME

The restricted and unrestricted investment revenues reflected in Exhibit B of the Financial
Statements are derived from trust funds willed to The Salvation Army. The restricted revenues
are disbursed according to the provisions of the trust instrument and are controlled by Territorial
Headquarters in New York. The unrestricted revenues are also-controlled by the Territorial
Headquarters and are disbursed according to the need of certain programs sponsored by The
Salvation Army.



EXHIBIT "A"
The Salvation Army

McKenna House Concord Corps Community Center

Form 990
Return of Organization Exempt from Tax Form

""The Salvation Army in the United States is composed of a National Headquarters, four Territories,
each separately incorporated, and multiple local units within each Territdry. As a church, The Salvation
Army is not required by the IRS to file the Form 990. However, to qualify to receive funding from
certain sources, some local units provide information to funding agencies by completing a Form 990

pro forma. Preparing such a pro forma does not constitute a voluntary filing for Form 990. As such,
providing the pro forma does not waive The Salvation Army's exemption from the requirement to file
the Form 990 return. Therefore, for example, the pro forma return provided to the Combined Federal
Campaign contains the following statement on the first page:

DISCLAIMER

The Salvation Army is not required to file IRS Form 990. Therefore, this form is submitted under protest,
in compliance with the ruling of CFC opinion 88-1 which states:

"QOrganizations that are not required to file IRS Form 990 with the IRS must nonetheless submit a
completed copy of that form with their application for national or local eligibility."

Since the pro form Form 990 return is provided in the situations and for the purposes described above

by local units of The Salvation Army, it is an abbreviated version designed to provide relevant information
about the local unit's operations and use of resources. Therefore, only certain applicable parts of the core
form that identify the local unit have been completed. Finally, depending on the context, certain parts of
the core form containing information relating to either the territory, the local unit, or in some cases,

a combination of both."”

_As Stated in Accounting Minute 15N
Guidelines for Local Preparation of IRS Form 990
Approved by Territorial Finance Council August 18, 2011



NAME

William A. Roberts
Barry C. Swanson
William R. Carlson
James W. Reynolds
Glenn C. Bloomfield
Thomas O. Henson
Thomas A. Schenk
Richard D. Allen
Jorge E. Diaz
Bernard W. Meitrott
Mark W. Tillsley
Kenpeth W. Maynor
Barbara A. Hunter.

As of 1February2013
(EXADPL)

THE SALVATION ARMY
a New York Corporation

Executive Address: 440 West Nyack Road

West Nyack, New York 10994-0635

Listing of Corporate Trustees and Officers

TITLE

Chairman of the Board, Trustee
President, Trustee

Vice President, Trustee
Treasurer, Trustee

First Assistant Treasurer, Trustee
Second Assistant Treasurer
Secretary, Trustee

Assistant Secreiary - Legal
Assistant Secretary - Property‘
Assistant Secretary - Finance
Trustee

Trustee

Trustee

HOME ADDRESS

m
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The Salvation Army
58 Clinton Street
Concord, NH

Advisory Board Listing
Updated 03/12

Major Jerry Stinson Darton Rose
The Salvation Army/Director e R
58 Clinton St

Concord, NH 03301

John Udaloy

| Li  White

David Eggleton

Chair- Mr. Geoff Martin

e — )
]

Mr. William Davis IIT

Mr. Gary Webb

Mary Beth McNicholas

John W. Mueller

Stuart Richter




Jenny Connor-Belcourt, CRSW

Education
Associate in Science - Addiction Counseling, Phi Theta Kappa
NHTI, Concord, NH - May 2010
GPA 3.9

Employment
Phoenix House Franklin Center, Franklin NH
Counselor Assistant/Program Coordinator-Impaired Driver Intervention Program/
Interim Administrative Assistant
November 2009 to October 2012
Duties include education, admissions, screening, counseling, record-keeping, supervision of
second shift staff

McKenna House, Concord NH

Case Manager

November 2010-February 2012

Case management with a focus on those with substance abuse issues.

Trainings & Certifications
Certified Recovery Support Worker - March 2011
Prime For Life Educator — June 2012
Addiction in the Family, Access To Recovery, WITS, Crisis Prevention Intervention , CPR/First
Aid, HIV & Trends, Ethics

Internships
Phoenix House Franklin Center, Franklin NH
September 2009-December 2009

Merrimack County Academy Program, Boscawen NH

February 2009-May 2009

Practicum which encompassed incorporating the educational knowledge of the twelve core
functions with the practical use of the twelve core functions.

Work Study
Salvation Army McKenna House, Concord, NH

September 2007- May 2008
Case management.



Other Experience
| Assistant Manager
Contoocook Covered Bridge Restaurant - Contoocook, NH
October 2003 - August 2009
Customer service, supervision, scheduling and training of front staff.

Bus driver - Concord Family YMCA, Greater Manchester YMCA-Allard Center
September 1997- June 2010
CDL-B with passenger endorsement

Home Educator

1994-2005

Independent educator knowledgeable in applicable resources to initiate and successfully
complete a home education for children in grades 1-9 to meet the requirements set forth by
The New Hampshire State Department of Education.

Volunteer Activities
Variety Show Ticket Sales
First Church of Hopkinton, Hopkinton, NH
February 2005-present
A bi-annual event which raises money for local charities.

Youth Group Chaperone

First Church of Hopkinton, Hopkinton, NH

2003-2008

Chaperone high school aged youth for various mission trips throughout the East Coast.
Duties include assisting and supervising youth for various volunteer activities in homeless
shelters, food pantries, and home improvement for those in need.

Convention Co-Chair

NE CoDA Intergroup- Littleton, MA

February 1999-January 2000

Collaborated with Co-Chair in organization and production of 1999 New England
Co-dependents Anonymous convention.

Interests
Family, transpersonal psychology, creative writing, nature

References available upon request.



Lorrie Dale

Experience

6/07-Current Salvation Army McKenna House Concord, NH
McKenna House Director

Day to day operations

Implement and follow policies and procedures

Develop and manage the McKenna House budget

Fundraising, grant writing, and special events. Directly instrumental in raising over
$300,000 in funding for the McKenna House.

Recruit, train, and hire paid staff and volunteers

Public speaking and community relations

Divisional territory homeless liaison

Facilitate partnerships with appropriate public and private agencies that provide
services to residents

Provide oral and written reports to the Salvation Army

¢ Participate on various local/state/Army committees related to homelessness

¢ Maintain records for program administration

9/07-Current NESDA Concord, NH

Instructor

¢ Instruct in dental assistant course skills based on 28 years of dental assistance
experience

Education

08 Crisis Prevention Institute, Inc. Concord, NH
e Nonviolent Crisis Intervention training — current through 12/08

03-07 Pride Institute Concord, NH
o Leadership skills

e Conflict management

e Team Building

9/80-5/81 Rochester Dental Assistance School Rochester, NY
Dental Assistance Certificate

References

Available upon request



Scott P. Griffin

Work History

Salvation Army Mckenna House May 2012 — December 2013
Concord, NH
Resident Staff Member

e Responsible for all daily operations of the shelter including: administrative front desk, ensuring
the safety of residents and staff, checking daily resident chores and accounting for all residents.

Salvation Army November 2012 — December 2012
Concord, NH November 2013 — December 2013
Bell Ringer

o  Required that | stand with the Salvation Army red kettle during the holiday season to ensure the
most amount of donations possible for the year.

Wendy's Restaurant June 2008 - April 2011
Tilton & Concord, NH
Cook

®  Responsible for turning out fast and delicious food in a timely manner.
Shaw’s Supermarket January 2007 - June 2008
Tilton, NH
Produce Clerk

e  Responsible for stocking the produce section of the supermarket.
Sam’s Club January 2006 — January 2007
Tilton, NH
Produce Manager

e Responsible for daily operations of the produce department.

Holiday Inn June 2000 - January 2006
Concord, NH
Sous Chef

e Responsible for all operations of the kitchen including: food preparation, ordering and stocking,
hiring and firing employees, and any other tasks required for smooth operations.



CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract

Jenny Connor- Case Manger $27040.00 25.5% 10,000.00

Belcourt

Scott Griffin House Manger $15080.00 0 0

Lorrie Dale Director $38,735.00 25.5% 10,000.00




Subject: Emergency Solutions Grant Program

FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

AGREEMENT ,
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1  State Agency Name

Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Human Services

1.2  State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

1.3 Contractor Name

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address

30 Exchange Street
Berlin, NH 03570

1.6

%829&)6%3%23010 7927

1.5 Contractor Phone Account Number
Number

(603) 752-7001

1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation

December 31, 2014 $32,512.00

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Eric D. Borrin

1.10  State Agency Telephone Number

(603) 271-9558

1.11 Contractor Signature

Wil Coon L

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Michael Coughlin Chief Executive Officer

1.13 Acknowledgement: State of WH , County of _ Coos
2-20-14

On , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated in block
1.12.

1.13.1  Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

__[MWQ Heret,

1.13.2 Name dnd-itle of Notary or Justice of the Peace

Suzanne . French, Notary

SUZANNE T. FRENCH
Notary Public - New Hampshire
My Commission Expires June 19, 2018

State Agency Signature

=7//

1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
O Cat

Frtn) s
ﬂ;‘oo ato (bt insn

1.16 Aperhe N.H. Departmenf of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)
By: Director, On:

1.17  Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

By: )?ﬂ%ﬂul on  F-2H{~LY

1.18 Approval by the Govérnor and Executive Council

By: On:

Page 1 of 4



2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State”), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date”).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
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5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity”), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

Contractor Initials: é
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report”) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
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Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each
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certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.
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20. THIRD PARTIES, The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24, ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Emergency Solutions Grant

1. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT

1.1 Notwithstanding any provisions of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the
State are contingent upon receipt of federal funds under the Emergency Services
Grant. The State has applied for the Emergency Services Grant and will continue to
perform due diligence in the application process. However, the State makes no
representation that it will receive the funds. In no event shall the State be liabie for
costs incurred or payment of any services performed by the Contractor prior to the
State’s receipt of federal funds applied for in the Emergency Services Grant.

2. PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO ALL SERVICES:

2.1 Except as otherwise modified in paragraphs of EXHIBIT A, the Contractor agrees to
comply with the program narrative, budget detail and narrative, and amendments
thereto, for Services, operations, prevention, acquisition, or rehabilitation as approved
by the Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services, Office of Human Services,
Department of Health and Human Services, hereafter referred to as the State.

2.2 The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right, following consultation with the Contractor, to
modify service priorities and expenditure requirements for the funds provided under
this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

2.3 The Contractor shall pursue any and all appropriate public sources of funds that are
applicable to the funding of the Services, operations, prevention, acquisition, or
rehabilitation. Appropriate records shall be maintained by the Contractor to document
actual funds received or denials of funding from such public sources of funds.

2.4 The Contractor shall provide semiannual and annual report information data by service
modality describing the number of unduplicated cases served, units of services
rendered, and staff required to provide the service, as may be required by the State.
Monthly reports may be required at the discretion of the State.

2.5 All programs under this contract that are emergency shelters, transitional programs or
permanent programs are required to be licensed to provide client level data into the
New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System (NH HMIS). Programs
under this contract must be familiar with and follow NH HMIS policy, including specific
information that is required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and time required
for data entry. Current NH HMIS policy can be accessed electronically through the
following website: http://www.nh-hmis.org.

2.6 Failure to submit the above reports or enter data into HMIS in a timely fashion could
result in the delay or withholding of reimbursements until such reports are received or
data entries are confirmed by the State.

3. SERVICES:

The Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that during the term of this Agreement, it will
provide services in accordance with the description(s) cited below:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit A

3.1 Emergency Solutions Grant Program, 24 CFR part 576

3.2 Contractor shall use the US Dept of Housing and Urban Development Emergency
Solutions Grant funds for;

& Prevention/Intervention Services, such as rent with eviction notice, mortgage with
foreclosure notice, utilities with disconnect notice, and other activities to prevent
homelessness.

O Essential Services, such as assistance in finding permanent housing,
employment counseling, substance abuse counseling, assistance in accessing
other community services, and staff salaries and benefits.

0O Operations Activities, including shelter operational costs such as rent, utilities,
insurance, and supplies.

Service Location:
262 Cottage Street, Suite 105
Littleton, NH 03561
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit B

METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

Emergency Solutions Grant

The following financial conditions apply to the scope of services as detailed in Exhibit A ~
Emergency Solutions Grant

This contract is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made
available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA), as follows:

NH General Fund: Not applicable

Federal Funds:

CFDA #: 14.231

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development
Program Title: Emergency Solutions Grant

Total Amount Emergency Solutions Grant Program;

2014: not to exceed $32,512.00

Funds allocation under this agreement for Emergency Solutions Grant Program;
Prevention expenses: $32,512.00

Total program amount: $32,512.00

1. Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory
completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement, the State agrees to fund
the Contractor for opera